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[ RUF20MARO7 - M

Tuesday, 20 March 2007

[ Pre- Def ence Conference]

[ Open session]

[ The accused Sesay and Kal |l on present]
[ The accused Gbao not present]

[ Upon conmencing at 10.15 a.m]]

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Good norning, counsel. Today's

is the pre-Defence conference for the RUF trial. For this

purpose, may | have representations please? For the

MR HARRI SON: My nanme is Harrison, initials PH Al so
present is M Charles Hardaway, M Penel ope- Ann Manattah. For

the record, that is MA-MA-T-T-A-H And also M Vi ncent

WA-GONA

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. For the first accused?

M5 ASHRAPH.  Your Honour, first accused, may | introduce
our new |l egal assistant, Jam e Liew, L-1-E-W who sits behind.

Your Honours will be acquainted with M Jared Kneitel and

Sareta Ashraph.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. For the second accused?

MR NI COL- WLSON: Your Honours, for the second accused,
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| also first of all introduce our new |l egal assistant, M

Sesay, on ny extrenme right, and together with ne is Mss

Maht ani, and nyself, Melron N col-WIson.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. For the third accused?

MR O SHEA: May it please Your Honours, | am Andreas

and | appear as court-appointed counsel for M Augustine Ghao,
who is not here, and | appear with Mss Lee Kulinowski, who is

from France.

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you
JUDGE I TCE: Just a minute. Can Mss Kulinowski appear

before us the way she is dressed? |If she is ready to appear

she ready to substitute you at any tinme during this

the way she is dressed?

MR O SHEA: | apol ogise. | should have indicated that

is alegal assistant, so in accordance w th Your Honours
directive, she is not robed.
JUDGE ITOE: That is why | didn't even recogni se her

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: This pre-Defence conference is being

in pursuance of Rule 73ter by Rules of Procedure and Evi dence

I will read the relevant sections of the Rule 73ter provides

f ol | ows:

"(A) The Trial Chanber or a Judge designated from anong

menbers may hold a conference prior to the commencenent by the
Def ence of its case. (B) Prior to that conference, the Tria
Chanber or a Judge designated fromanong its nmenbers may order

that the Defence, before the comencenent of its case but

the close of the case for the Prosecution, file the follow ng:
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(i) admi ssions by the parties and a statenent of other matters

which are not in dispute; (ii) a statement of contested

of fact and law;, (iii) a list of the witnesses the Defence

intends to call with; (a) the name or pseudonym of each

(b) a summary of the facts on which each witness will testify;
(c) the points in the indictnent as to which each witness wll

testify; and (d) the estimated length of tinme required for

witness; (iv) alist of exhibits the Defence intends to offer

its case, stating where possible whether or not the Prosecutor

has any objection as to authenticity. The Trial Chanber or

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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sai d Judge may order the Defence to provide the Trial Chanber

the Prosecutor with copies of witten statenments of each

whom t he Defence intends to call to testify. (C The Trial
Chanber or a Judge designated fromanong its nenbers may order
the Defence to shorten the estimted | ength of the

exam nation-in-chief of sonme witnesses; (D) The Trial Chanber

a Judge designated fromanong its nmenbers may order the

to reduce the nunber of witnesses, if it considers that an

excessive nunber of w tnesses are being called to prove the

facts; (E) After the commencenent of the Defence case, the
Def ence may, if it considers it to be in the interests of

justice, nove the Trial Chanber for leave to reinstate the

of witnesses or to vary its decision as to which witnesses are

be called."

On 30 Cctober 2006, this Trial Chanber issued a

order concerning the preparation and the commencenent of the
Def ence case for the foll owi ng purposes: (A) to consider the

compliance of the Defence with the Chanber's order on filing
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Def ence materials; (B) to review the Defence witness |ist and

set the nunber of w tnesses each Defence teamw ||l be entitled

call; (C to determne the time which will be available to

Def ence teamto present their case; (D) to ascertain whether

first and third accused still intend to exercise their right

make an opening statenment on Rule 84 of the Rules; (E) to

the parties of the procedure for the presentation of evidence;
(F) to deal with any other matters that the Chanber considers

appropriate for the purposes of facilitating the presentation

each Defence case. Qur agenda itens this norning, counsel, are

follows: After inquiring about the state of health of each

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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accused person we will go through the following itens: (A

review of Defence filings; materials filed by Defence for

materials filed by Defence for Kallon; materials filed by

for Gohao; and then we'll also | ook at the nunber of Defence
wi tnesses and the length of the Defence case, with particul ar

references to Rule 92bis wi tnesses and al so character

We will then discuss opening statenents by first and

accused, then nove on to procedure for the presentation of the

evi dence, concluding with any other nmatter that counsel may

to bring to the attention of the Chanber.

Let us begin with some inquiry into the state of health

the accused persons. The first accused.
MR O SHEA: Your Honour, before we --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Did you want to cone out of turn?

MR O SHEA: Yes, Your Honour. | just want to indicate -

think I have indicated, but | just wanted to nake it clear --

Ghao is not here. | amgrateful for the opportunity to go and

see him I ran down to the detention centre and it woul d
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that the reason he is not here is because he's upset with ne,

it is also clear that he consents not to be here today.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. W certainly are proceeding
wi t hout the presence of M Ghao. This is a pre-Defence
conf erence.
JUDGE BOUTET: May | comment on this? | wll have
appreciated, M O Shea, that you had met your client earlier
even though you may be in a state of affairs that may be

difficult with your client. | don't understand or do |I see

this Court was delayed by 15 minutes just to allow you to try

talk to your client. |If you needed time, you could have done

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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1 that earlier this nmorning without delaying the process of this
2 Court today.
3 MR O SHEA: | entirely agree, Your Honour, and
apol ogi se
4 for that, but it was fromcircunstances beyond nmy control. |
was
5 not picked up by the Court transport last night. | had no
nmeans
6 of comunicating with the Court transport, and this norning
was
7 not picked up by the Court transport. | only nanaged to
8 conmmuni cate with themat about 8.00 in the norning and | was
only
9 pi cked up at ten to nine, but | did do everything within ny
power
10 to get here.
11 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. First accused. Do you
have
12 any information to give to the Court on the state of the
heal t h
13 of the first accused?
14 M5 ASHRAPH.  Yes, Your Honour, just a brief update. As
15 Your Honours will know, M Sesay was in Senegal for an
oper ation.
16 That operation was successful and he is recovering well. He
17 still experiences sonme minor pain, as | inmagine would be
expect ed
18 after such a significant operation, but he is in good health

and
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he is recovering well.

In particular, the Sesay teamwould |like to thank the
Regi stry, nost especially M Von Hebel, who is now Acting
Regi strar, and N kol aus Toufar, who is the |egal adviser, for

communi cating with the team and assisting us while M Sesay

i n Senegal .

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Second accused?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, the second accused is in
good heal th.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Counsel will recall that

trial comrenced on 5 July 2004 and the Prosecution closed its

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |



Page 7

ora

pur suant

was

cal

98

of

filings.

Cct ober

of

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

SESAY ET AL

20 MARCH 2007 OPEN SESSI ON

case on 2 August 2006 after 182 days of trial. |In total, 86
wi t nesses were heard during the Prosecution's case.

On 25 Cctober 2006, this Trial Chanber delivered its

deci si on on Defence nmotions for judgnment of acquittal

to Rule 98 of the Rules. Each of the Defence notions was

di sm ssed. However, the Trial Chanber found that no evi dence

adduced by the Prosecution in relation to several geographica
| ocati ons pleaded in various counts of the indictnent.

Consequently, each accused has been put to his election to

evidence, if he so desires, and, undoubtedly, this pre-Defence

conference is a |logical emanation of the decision in the Rule

nmot i on.

We will now proceed to the first inportant itemin terns

the state of the filings and that is review of Defence

Here the records show that, in a scheduling order of 30

2006, we ordered that the Defence teans for each accused file

certain materials concerning the preparati on and presentation

their case
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Previously, on 27 Cctober 2006, a first status

was held for the purposes of considering the inplenenting
nodal ities for the preparation and presentation of the Defence
case, and submissions in this regard were nade by the Defence
t eans.

M Jordash, for the first accused, al so appeared on

of the third accused, in the absence of Court-appointed

In particular, in our scheduling order, we ordered that each

the Defence teans should individually file the follow ng
mat eri al s:

(A) A core and back-up witness list of all the

SCSL - TRIAL CHAMBER |
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that each Defence teamintends to call, including, (i) the

and rel evant identifying data subject to any protective

that m ght have been ordered by the Chanber, the pseudonym of
each witness; (ii) A detailed summary of each witness's
testinony. The summary should, subject to any protective
measures that m ght have been ordered by the Chanber, be

sufficiently descriptive to allow the Prosecution and the

to appreciate and understand the nature and content of the

proposed testinmony; (iii) The points of the indictnent to

each witness will testify, including the exact
par agr aph/ par agr aphs and the specific count/counts; (iv) The
estimated length of tine for each witness to testify and the

| anguage in which the testinmony is expected to be given; (v)

i ndi cation of whether the witness will testify in person or

pursuant to Rule 92bis of the Rules. Should the Defence seek

add any witness or to nodify this list, it may be permtted to

so, only upon good cause bei ng denonstrat ed;
(B) An indication of whether the accused will testify at

trial pursuant to Rule 85(C) of the Rules;
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(O Alist of the expert witnesses, whose nanmes nust

on the list of witnesses referred to above, with a brief

description of the nature of their evidence and an indication

when their reports will be ready and nade available to all the
parties, and in accordance with Rul e 94bis of the Rules;

(D) An indication of conmon witnesses, if any, who wll

call ed by the Defence teans;

(E) Alist of exhibits the Defence intends to offer in

case, containing a brief description of their respective

and contents and stating, where possible, whether or not the

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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1 Prosecution has any objection as to their authenticity.
Shoul d
2 the Defence seek to add any exhibit to this list after
3 16 February 2007, it may be permtted to do so only upon good
4 cause bei ng shown;
5 (F) A chart which indicates for each paragraph in the
6 current indictnent the testinonial evidence and docunentary
7 evi dence upon which the Defence will rely to defend the
accused
8 agai nst the allegations contained therein.
9 In addition, the Chanber also ordered that the
Prosecuti on
10 and each of the Defence teans subnit a joint statenment of
agr eed
11 facts and matters, which are not in dispute, as well as a
j oi nt
12 statement of contested matters of fact and | aw, hereinafter
13 referred to as joint statement of agreed facts.
14 On 7 February this year, the Chanber granted two
di stinct
15 applications filed by the Defence for the first accused and
t he
16 second accused for the postponenent until 5 March 2007 of the
17 deadline for the filings of these materials. The Chanber also
18 ordered that the Defence for the third accused was to file its

19 materials on the sane date.
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Accordingly, on 5 March 2007, various nmaterials were

by each of the Defence teams. For the purposes of this pre-

conference, the materials filed by each of the Defence teans

now be viewed in order to ascertain their formal and

conpliance with the orders of this Court. Mre specific

such as the overall nunber of the Defence w tnesses and the
projected I ength of the Defence case, will be addressed at a
different stage of this pre-Defence conference.

Let us now begin with the materials filed by Defence for

the first accused. W'Il now go the witness list and w tness

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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summaries. Let nme, just before counsel responds, indicate

the records show that the Defence for the first accused filed

core witness list containing a total of 175 w tnesses, of

50 witnesses are Rule 92bis w tnesses and a back-up w tness

containing a total of 146 back-up w tnesses. The Chanber

that at the status conference held on 27 Cctober |ast year

Defence for Sesay prelimnarily estinmated a total of 100 core

wi t nesses, 200 back-up witnesses and, in addition, 30 Rule

wi tnesses. We would say al so that the records show t hat

have also filed sunmaries of all of its w tnesses' intended
t esti noni es.

I will nowinvite cooments fromthe parties beginning

you, |learned counsel for the first accused.

M5 ASHRAPH  Yes, Your Honour. Your nunbers are

There are 175 core witnesses of which we have designated 50 as

w tnesses under Rule 92bis. |'maware of the estinmates that

given previously by the Sesay team | know we are not dealing

with the nunber of witnesses at this stage, but if | may allay
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sonme concerns, that the Sesay teamis obviously nmaking al
efforts to call only the nunber of wi tnesses which will serve
M Sesay's best interests, and we'll obviously keep the Court
regul arly infornmed of any changes in our witness |ist and,
obvi ously, by changes, | nmean reductions in the nunber of core
Wi t nesses.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: So there is a possibility of
de-escal ation of the list?

M5 ASHRAPH: There is, indeed, a significant possibility

de-escal ation of the |ist.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Before we --

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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JUDGE BOQUTET: When are we to be infornmed of this

bearing in mnd the first accused is the first one to cal

witnesses? |In fairness to all the parties they should all be

informed in due tinme with sufficient notification as to what

happeni ng with the Defence of your client.
M5 ASHRAPH. | agree, Your Honour. What | will say is

this: W have a projected estimate for length of tine we'll

for our Defence case. That, | think, is a reasonable estimte

which we'll come to in the agenda. That estimate in no way

allowus to call 175 witness, even with 50 wi tnesses put under

Rul e 92bis. W'Il be reviewing it constantly. At this stage,

can't honestly say; we are still in the process of

and re-interviewing witnesses. To give Your Honours a fina

of what our witness would be -- what | can say is we are

obviously in regular contact. We'Ill be in regular contact

our co-accused and with the Prosecution, obviously with the

Chanber, as to the nunber of w tnesses. W have set an
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| ength of our Defence case, which we hope will not change and,

anything, will decrease. That length of tine does not
accommpdate 175 witnesses. | don't know if that assists. At
this stage | can't be nore specific because obviously those
deci si ons haven't yet been nade.

JUDGE I TOE: Ms Ashraph, we would |like you to be nore
specific and within a very short period of time, because the
Prosecution needs to concentrate and to know i n advance the

nunber of w tnesses you are going to call, and even the

team They need to know in advance. |'mnot saying that it

very easy for you to arrive at this decision at this point in

time. You need to interview witnesses. You need to anal yse

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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wi ||l best serve, as you yourself have indicated, the interests

your client. But | think the sooner you come to this

mean, fromthe parties, the better, because they need to know
that they have to deal with ten witnesses definitely, 50 or a
hundred, so they can concentrate their study and their
cross-examnation input in relation to what you woul d have
communi cated to them as your definitive list of the w tnesses

M5 ASHRAPH. | am grateful, Your Honour. May | just

the Sesay teamin no way disputes that. |'m hoping that
generally through the nodalities of the trial session, when we

rel ease our trial session |list of witnesses that will be

and the order, that woul d obviously narrow the field. If Your
Honours woul d want to give the Sesay teama date for further

narrowing to assist the other parties to these proceedings,

certainly we'll conply with that.
As | said, we'll obviously forward the first session of

M Sesay's Defence. W obviously will have to release a |list

the witnesses that would be called and a disclosure of their
identities. Now at that stage, obviously the issues and the

nunmber of witnesses will be narrowed significantly. [|f Your
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Honours prefer that we gave a narrower |ist before then, we'l

comply with any order of the Court. W are actively seeking

reduce our |ist now
JUDGE BOUTET: Whatever effort you can nmake in that

direction -- you will appreciate that, sitting on this side,

you see these huge nunbers coming in, 175 and so on, this is

for your client, as such, and given we are hoping to finish

trial as expeditiously as possible, and when we total up these

wi tnesses, we mght be here for the next five years, which I'm

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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not prepared to do, | should tell you. So this is really some

the concerns. | nean, | amcertainly quite pleased to hear

you intend to reduce significantly, and | do know this is not

al ways an easy choi ce, because you have to nake a

bet ween witness X and witness B, as to who is best, but | hope

you are naking that elimnation. Because if we need not to

X and B, we should hear only the best of the two.
M5 ASHRAPH. Yes. |Indeed, obviously the best of the two

will serve M Sesay's interests. Indeed, the Sesay team

has no intention of being here in five years' tine.

JUDGE BQUTET: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Let nme shift gears a bit and nove on

the summaries. The Chanber's opinion is that generally
wi tness sumaries that were filed for your side are
detailed and then, for exanple, referred to DIS-101, DI S- 163

we are also of the view that, exceptionally, some of the

summaries do |lack sufficient specificity and we don't -- |'m

avoi di ng giving exanples, but if you can enbark upon sonme ki nd
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sol ving of these summaries and see which, in fact, do |ack

of the particularisation which is necessary. But you can be

touch with the legal officers of our Chanber. They may be

to produce sone exanples for you

What about the position of your client testifying on his
own behalf? Let me tell you what the position we -- which we
record as representing the status quo. At a status conference
hel d on 27 October |ast year, you prelimnarily indicated that
your client will probably testify at the trial, pursuant to

Rul e 85(C), and you have now stated in the nmaterials that it

likely that the accused will testify but that the nmatter is

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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under review as you assess the totality of the evidence.

you like to update us on that or give us sonething nore

definitive, or would we be pushing you too hard if we require

this point intine a definitive position?

M5 ASHRAPH: At the nmonent, Your Honours, | wouldn't

to put a different position on the record. However, | will

inall likelihood, M Sesay will be testifying on his own

and that should be the assunption that the Trial Chanber and

parties shoul d operate under.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Then the probabilities are high?

M5 ASHRAPH: Yes, they're very high. Yes, Your Honour.

JUDGE BOUTET: If | may, when will that probability be
converted into certainty, one way or the other, if |I can ask?
Again, it has to do with proper preparation, both by us and by

the parties, as you appreciate. Because if he is to testify,

is to be the first wtness.

M5 ASHRAPH: | ndeed.

JUDGE BQUTET: Presunmably, his evidence would be quite
comprehensive, at least in the space of time; | amnot talking

about details. For preparation by any of the parties for
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cross-exam nation, they need sone information beforehand as to

I nean, if he is not to testify then the preparati on need not

be done at least to the sane extent. That is, in that

perspective. W are noving even closer to this tinme, because

is just around the corner. So this is really what | am

you about. So | don't need an answer today. W accept what
you're saying for now, but when is the question.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: W probably would definitely like to

exhort you as strongly as we can to expedite the process.

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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what ny | earned brother has said, it's certainly inportant

the other side be apprised of this position
M5 ASHRAPH. Yes, Your Honour. And as | said, if Your
Honours wish to give us a date, we'll obviously conply by a

certain date. obviously when we rel ease our first wtness

it is our hope M Sesay's name will be onit. As | said
previously, the Sesay teamwould ask all parties to the
proceedings to work on the assunption that M Sesay will be
gi ving evidence in his own Defence.

JUDGE I TOE: You see, we are very hesitant to put you

any formof pressure to certain date linmts as to when he

take certain decisions. W want to leave it to you to be able

make that determination. Al we wanted you to understand is

preoccupi es us as a Chanber, and that certain things have to

done with expedition, so as to put all the parties on the

track to be able to start the proceedings, you know, as far as
you are client is concerned.

M5 ASHRAPH. | amgrateful for that, Your Honour. What

will say is that | will obviously comunicate that to counsel
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and we'll informthe Court and other parties in a very tinely

manner. \What we do not want is any applications, obviously,

an adjournment. We would like the trial to proceed on 2 My

for all parties to be prepared. So we are working towards

goal .

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. |nsofar as expert

are concerned, you indicated that your side intends to call

expert witness, nanely witness DI S-250 to testify about the
conflict in Sierra Leone and the anthropol ogy of the RUF

movenent. You indicated that the relevant expert report will

SCSL - TRIAL CHAMBER |
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ready by April 2007. Do you want to confirmthat or is there

commrent that you want to nmake in response to that?
M5 ASHRAPH. | can sinply confirmthat Your Honour, yes.

Your Honour will note there are a list of w tnesses that we

hoping to call.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  VYes.
M5 ASHRAPH. Just for the record, we are not having any

probl ems | ocating expert w tnesses who can exam ne the issues

gi ve evidence consistent with our Defence case. There are

issues in relation to the finding of those experts, as Your

Honours know, and | will not canvass those with you here.

have now noved to anot her stage and we hope there will be sone

resolution of those. | obviously can't give further details

relation to those reports, but in relation to the report of
Dl S-250, we are hoping by the end of April, or as soon as
possible, we'll serve that on the other parties to these

pr oceedi ngs.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Does the Prosecution have anything to

on that? Any coments in terms of this report fromthe expert
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wi tness, who'll be testifying about the conflict in Sierra

and t he ant hropol ogy of the RUF novenent.

MR HARRI SON:  The only thing | can raise with the Court

the fact that a pseudonym was given to an expert.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | see.

MR HARRI SON:  And the scheduling order refers to a list

expert w tnesses whose nanes nust appear on the |ist of
Wi t nesses.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Quite right.

MR HARRI SON: The Prosecution is asking if a protective

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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measures notion is going to be brought, that it ought to be
brought. But if one is not going to be brought --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: We uncover this cloak

MR HARRI SON:  Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: What is your response? Maybe that was
i nadvertent, was it?

M5 ASHRAPH.  Your Honour, there is a protective nmeasures

nmotion for witnesses residing outside of Sierra Leone. Sorry,

amjust trying to find the agenda at the nmonent. This w tness
woul d fall under that. dearly, if Your Honours order us to
reveal it, we will do so, the expert's nane. At the nonent we
are awai ting a deci sion.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Al right. Well, we'll just |ook at

again and check that. Yes, go ahead.

MR HARRI SON:  Sorry to interrupt. WAs there an intent

include the expert witness in the notion that was filed

persons residing outside of West Africa? Because there was no

menti on what soever within that notion that it was intended to

is there a second notion is what | am aski ng?

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Let us clarify this first.
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M5 ASHRAPH.  Your Honour, | don't have actually a copy

the motions with me. What | will say is this: |1 would need

review the nmotion that was filed on 5 March and see whet her
DI S-250 was nmeant to be included in that. | was obviously

working on the February filings at the tinme and was not

concerned with that notion. |If not, then obviously the

teamw || make that nanme avail able for the Prosecution.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very well. Is that all right,

M Harrison?

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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MR HARRI SON: Yes, of course.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: You indicated -- you virtually alluded

the question of your inability to secure other expert

because of funding --

M5 ASHRAPH.  Yes, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: -- constraints, and you indicated that
you are intending to instruct three nore expert w tnesses;

nanely, a nmilitary expert, a child psychol ogi st statistician

al so a diamond m ning expert. |f you had been able to secure
them the reports, you said, would have been ready within a

period of three nonths. Are you abandoning that effort now,

you sai d, because of funding constraints?
M5 ASHRAPH. We are not abandoning that effort, no, Your

Honours. W are hoping that funding will be nmade avail abl e

we can fund the experts that we have |ocated. Cbviously we'll

need to do so in a speedy manner and get those reports

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, | was going to say that you would
need to intensify your efforts in that direction

M5 ASHRAPH.  Your Honour, in ternms of |ocating the

that has predoninantly been done. It is really nore of an
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adm nistrative sorting out of contracts and trying to ensure

we can properly fund the experts that we have | ocated. The

has been working very hard and has been dealing, obviously,

the Ofice of the Principal Defender and the Registry in

to those natters.

PRESIDING JUDGE: Tinme is of the essence, otherw se

have to come with an order from the Chanmber for conpliance

M5 ASHRAPH: | ndeed, Your Honour. As | said, in terns

the underlying desire of the Sesay team it is obviously to
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the trial nove forward as quickly as possible.

JUDGE BOUTET: Can | ask you if you have di scussed these
matters with the other parties? | am concerned about what
appears to be a high nunber of expert witnesses that are to be
called by the Defence. |If you are calling four, and other

parties are doing the same, as such, it will becone a battle

experts. |I'mnot sure we are really interested in a battle of
experts. W are really concerned to try to find out what

happened and what is the best evidence you can produce. As

know, it doesn't go by nunber; it goes by nore quality than

nunbers.
Havi ng said that, for exanple -- | amusing your
description -- an expert, whether he is needed or not, is not

comrent indeed this norning, but one, a dianond m ning expert.

woul d i magi ne that not every single accused needs to call such

expert, as such. One for the whol e Defence team woul d be

sufficient. So that is why ny question to you is: Have you

any di scussion, prelimnary discussion, with other parties as

these witnesses? | amusing the dianond expert as an exanpl e.

M5 ASHRAPH. |If you'll excuse nme, Your Honour? Your



21 Honour, 1, nyself, had a neeting with | ead counsel on the
Kal | on

22 team sonme nonths ago. | can't renmenber the date. It was a
very

23 brief meeting. It was canvassed again -- it was not a |ong

24 enough neeting, really, to go into the depth of it. |
under st and

25 that M Jordash has had conversations with M O Shea about

26 experts. dearly, further discussion will have to be had
bet ween
27 the teans. W obviously do not want a duplication of experts
28 where experts can bring evidence which will assist al
29 defendants, so we will obviously be in nore conmunicati ons.
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As |'ve said, at the nonment, the Sesay teamis
concentrating on the funding of the experts, predom nantly,

because we can't really nake offers to potential experts unti

can give them sone idea of what their contracts mnight | ook

So we are at an inpasse in terns of that at the nmonment. But
we' || obviously comuni cate with our co-accused.

JUDGE BOUTET: Because if the inpasse has to do with

if they are comopn witnesses, it nay support, in nore stronger

terns, your position froma financial perspective. If it is

expert that can speak on behal f of the three accused,
therefore -- on whatever issue, |I'mnot pushing you in any one

direction, but | certainly invite you to consult positively

your colleagues to see if there is any roomfor conmon experts
somewhere in there.

M5 ASHRAPH. | ndeed, that would be, obviously, the nost
sensi bl e approach and we will do so. Wat M Jordash has
started, | will obviously continue while I'min the country.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: I n respect of conmpn witnesses then

course, | reckon the position -- the response you nmay give ne
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may have to be revised in the light of the possibility of

comon expert w tnesses, because on 27 Cctober |ast year, the

i ndication was that you will not be calling any comon

since you didn't have a common Defence strategy. This seens

be the theme that runs throughout all the Defence materials.

I reckon that now, in answer to Honourabl e Justice Boutet, you
m ght consider the advisability of having conmon expert
Wi t nesses.

M5 ASHRAPH. Definitely in relation to expert w tnesses,

yes. That will continue to be discussed.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, but not non-expert w tnesses; the
position remai ns the sane.

M5 ASHRAPH. The Sesay teamis carefully considering

At this stage, we are not convinced of the nerit of any common

non- expert w tnesses. Cbviously we are open to discussions

the ot her Defence teans and anongst ourselves, and we wll

obvi ously have to have those and will keep the Court updated,

the position of the Sesay team --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But this is not sonething that you

to |l eave hanging in the air because, | nean, if you have taken

definitive position, there is not likely to be a common

strategy.
M5 ASHRAPH.  No.

PRESI DING JUDGE: It would seemto follow, as a natter

logic, that you don't intend to call conmon w tnesses, so we
don't need to have such a decision in abeyance. Qherwise it
wi |l conpound the issue of the equation of expedition

M5 ASHRAPH: | ndeed, Your Honour. As |'ve said, the

team has had a look at this very carefully and had a | ook at



per haps

wher e

Def ence

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

where interests of the defendants lie, the districts that

particul ar defendants are nost concerned with, and really

there are areas of overlap in the Defence cases. It is our
position at the nmoment that there is not sufficient overlap to
make the common witnesses be sonething that would be naturally
advant ageous.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ri ght.

M5 ASHRAPH. That may not be the position of other

teans and obviously we are open to discussions on that. W --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But is there dial ogue ongoing on that?
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M5 ASHRAPH. Well, at the nonent, yes. W have
prelimnaries of dialogue, yes. There have been severa
communi cati ons and we have said --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: The Bench would like to urge you to
expedite this and conclude it.

M5 ASHRAPH. |'mgrateful, Your Honour. We'Ill do so.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Exhibit list. The Defence
for Sesay filed an exhibit list containing a total of 395
exhibits. Excuse ne. However, the materials do not indicate
whet her the Prosecution has any objection as to their

authenticity. Perhaps | should give the Prosecution a chance

thi s one.
MR HARRI SON:  The reality is we were hoping to ask the
Court for an order that the exhibits be produced so that an

attenpt could be nade to review the exhibits and then provide

Court with any guidance as to those to which authenticity

be agreed to?
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very well. M Ashraph?

JUDGE I TCE: What if it were a nutual agreenent between

parties instead of bringing the Court into the picture?

MR HARRI SON: Yes, of course.
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JUDGE | TOE: | nean, that would sort matters nmuch nore
easily.
MR HARRI SON: O course.

JUDGE | TOE: And that would nake them | ess contenti ous

they would if they cane before us. And probably also, | may

nmore authentic as well, because it would have been at the

of the two contesting parties. W are just arbiters, that's

Thank you.
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M5 ASHRAPH. Yes, Your Honour. | was going to say that
woul d resist an order being nmade. | think this could be

between the parties and | can contact M Harrison and M

today to start that process.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Again, we woul d probably enphasi se

time is of the essence. Right. The evidentiary chart. You
filed an evidentiary chart --

M5 ASHRAPH:  Yes, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: -- indicating for each party of the

current indictnent the testinonial and documentary evi dence

you intend to rely on. Qur comrent is that the evidentiary

chart, froma prelininary exam nation, is generally accurate

that there are only a few discrepanci es between the wtness

and the evidentiary chart, for exanple, D S-011. But you can

in contact with our legal officers as to further and better
particulars in respect of alleged deficiencies.
M5 ASHRAPH: We will do so, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. As far as the joint statenent
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agreed facts is concerned, on 20 February this year, we

an application on behalf of your client for the postponenent

the deadline for the filing of the joint statement of agreed

facts due to the then tenporary absence fromthe jurisdiction

your client. On 9 March 2007, you filed a list of two

facts, which it proposed to the Prosecution for agreenent. To
date, the Chanber has no record of any response fromthe

Prosecution on these proposed facts. Perhaps we should hear

M Harri son.

MR HARRI SON:  Yes. The response will be filed before

end of this week.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. That takes care of that,

the time being. That will obviate the possibility of a

order.

We'll now deal with the naterials. W'Il| cone back to

at sone appropriate point, except if there is anything so

perenptory that you want to call the attention of the Chanber

M5 ASHRAPH: Only that M Sesay would like to | eave the
roomfor a mninute.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Leave is granted.

M5 ASHRAPH: |' m grateful

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Materials filed by counsel for the

accused. Wtness list and sutmary list. The Defence filed a
core witness list containing a total of 96 witnesses, three of
which are Rule 92(B) witnesses and a back-up witness |ist
containing a total of 61 back-up w tnesses.

The Chanber notes that at the status conference held

on 27 Cctober last year, you prelimnarily estimated a total

150 witnesses, 75 of which would be called as core w tnesses

you al so filed summaries of all your w tnesses's intended
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testinonies. Could you respond to that state of the record?

MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour. The details you

just nentioned are correct. W have a list of 96 core

and 61 back-up wi tnesses.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.

MR NI COL-WLSON: But thisis alist that we intend to
review.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wth a purpose of reduction, no doubt,
not for --

JUDGE | TOCE: Not to increase?

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Because the figure, as it stands,

astrononical, relatively speaking.

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honour, there is a possibility of
de-escal ation of this list, in terns of review

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very wel |.

MR NI COL-WLSON: But there is also a slight possibility

an escal ati on.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, where would be the conpensating
di mension now, if you escal ate and de-escal at e?

MR NI COL-WLSON: Well, at the nonment, the

are still ongoing, and then there is a likelihood of
de-escal ation in view of the |ack of accessibility to sonme of
these wi t nesses.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.

MR NICOL-WLSON: But in the situation where we are able

access all of these w tnesses, and our ongoing investigation

are able to secure nore witnesses, there would be a slight
i ncrease.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, of course, all we need to do,

Bench needs to remind you that we have the authority, in the
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extrene case, of being proactive Judges, indicating that we

you shoul d reduce, particularly having regard to the adage

quality of the evidence is what is really inportant, not
quantity.

MR NICOL-WLSON:. | will agree with Your Honour. The
chances of the list being reduced is greater than that of the
list being increased.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very wel | .

JUDGE BOUTET: To speak on nmy own behalf, | can tell you

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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that I will not vieww th any positive response any request to

i ncrease your list of witnesses. That is my own position at

time.
I amstill quite puzzled by the nunber of w tnesses when

you conpare the relative conparison between w tnesses called

t he Defence and those called by the Prosecution. | thought

is a case where the Prosecution has to prove that these

are guilty and the presunption of innocence still applies in
these trials. So that is why | say | amquite puzzled by the
sheer nunber of witnesses that is being called. | nean, this

comrent is not addressed exclusively to you; it is addressed

al | Defence counsel

So that is why | say | may be convinced ot herw se, but

first reaction would be any request for an escal ation and
i ncreasing of witnesses would not be seen in a very positive
light, | can tell you that.

MR NI COL- WLSON: Your Honours, as you know, we wll

our witnesses after the Sesay Defence team have called their
wi t nesses, and based on the outcome of that process, we night

reduce our list substantially.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: W can characterise the Bench's

as one of judicial skepticism alnost probably crystallising

judicial disfavour for the reasons that mny | earned coll eague

given. W certainly belong to the school of the thought as
Judges that the purpose of Defence witnesses is really to poke
holes in the Prosecution's case, not to multiply issues.

In any event, your promi se to reduce the nunber is

and we hope that you will continue to advise yourself along

i nes.
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MR NI COL-WLSON: Certainly, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: In the context of the w tness

I think we are of the view fromthe prelimnary exam nation of
the witness summaries, that your sunmmaries are generally

sufficiently detail ed because there are few of them which are,

a way, lacking in specificity and particularisation.

Again, the legal officers of the Chanber will give you

exanples but | could just say DWK-037, DWK-124. So we ask you

revi ew your sumaries so that you can renedy those

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honour, the reason why those
sunmari es would seemnot to be sufficient is because those
witnesses were not re-interviewed before the filing of the
Def ence materials and we are going to re-interview those
wi tnesses and liaise with the Chanber's |egal officers.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. And if you need sone guidance as

what is required in terns of sufficiency and nore

particul arisation, you mght refer to our order in the CDF

whi ch was issued on 2 March 2006 entitled, "Order to the first
accused to refile sumaries of witness testinonies.”" In

particul ar, order number two thereof may provide useful help.
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MR NICOL-WLSON:  |I'm

grateful, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: On the issue of your client appearing

a W tness,

testifying on his own behal f, pursuant to Rule

what is the definitive position now?

MR NI COL- W LSON:  Your

Honour, at the nmonment, it is

at the stage of a likelihood.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: How? How? |Is it a high probability?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Ther

testify.

SCSL -
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Because there was an indication that

will testify.

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour. But we'll only be

to advise the Court after the first three witnesses for M

will have testified. This is a matter which has to do with

Def ence strategy, and | really do not intend to give nore

at this stage, but there is a likelihood he will testify. But

we'll informthe Court well ahead of tinme. As Your Honours
rightly know, we'll only call the w tnesses upon the
of witnesses for the Sesay Defence team but we'll notify the

Court in due course

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well in due course is not satisfactory
because, again, we say that tine is of the essence. The
Prosecution ought to be able to exanmine any sumary that you

provide in respect of your client, if he is to testify, and it

al so inportant that we expedite that aspect of it. Wat we

said in respect of the first accused would apply also to you

| hope you bear that in mnd.



want

t hat

process,

to

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

MR NI COL- WLSON: Yes

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, it is inmportant. They either

to testify on their behalf or they don't want to. | agree

there are so many variables to factor into this kind of

but the Court can't just wait indefinitely for such a very
i mportant deci sion.

MR Nl COL- W LSON: Your Honours, I'msure we'll be able

advi se the Court before the start of the Defence case on the
6th --
JUDGE BOUTET: Does that nean you have changed your

position? | thought in your filing you had indicated that the
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accused will testify in conpliance? | mean this is what is
witten on the docunment you filed with the Court.
MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour.

JUDGE BOUTET: So we assumed fromthere that that

had al ready been nmade, and that he would testify.
MR NI COL-WLSON: At that stage, that decision was nade

that he will testify, but in terns of judicial econony,

at the nunmber of witnesses we intend to call, we mght review
that position. That is exactly what | am sayi ng.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: I n other words, are you saying that
sonmebody ni ght speak on his behal f?

MR NI COL-WLSON:  Well, Your Honour, he mght decide not

testify.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Because sonebody woul d have done it on
hi s behal f?

MR NI COL- WLSON: Exactly.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Sounds like a kind of, what, is it a
ganbl e or sonet hi ng?

MR NI COL-WLSON:  No. No, Your Honour. What | will say

for certain, Your Honour, is that there is a huge |ikelihood

he will testify.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, yes. Yes, | see. M |earned
col | eague did push you to that position because you had noved

fromcertainty at one stage and that's what we are saying

has necessitated this gravitational nove away fromcertainty

huge probability? It is a very inportant decision whether an

accused person needs to testify on his own behalf or not in

judicial process. And the presunption here is that when the

deci sion was taken, all the inportant factors were taken into
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consideration. So what, really, necessitated this slight

That is why | say | hope it is not a gane of ganble that, oh
well, if we have nore w tnesses and somebody conmes and says

sonet hing on his behalf which is very hel pful, and which he

have said hinself -- but 'ma little -- | find it difficult

process that intellectually as part of the way you want to
approach it.

MR NI COL- W LSON:  Your Honours, as you know, the accused

entitled to change his mnd.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ch, certainly he is. But in the

of effective trial managenent, we are entitled to have sone
certainty as to how we organi se our procedure.

MR NI COL- WLSON: Well, Your Honour, | do not want to

a statenment which will not be conpletely accurate at this

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, we advise you to expedite this
process and cone up with sonething definitive.

MR NI COL-WLSON: We will, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Pretty soon. Oherw se you | eave the
Court with no option but to issue an order.

JUDGE BOUTET: Again, you see, you don't want to nmake a
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statenent that would be inaccurate at this particular nonent.

5 March 2007, it's only a few weeks ago, you filed a statenent
saying, "The Kallon Defence provide notice that the accused
Morris Kallon will testify.”

I nean there is no equivocation there, no anbiguity. So

under stand that the accused may change his mnd, but | would

assuned if there were any doubts in the accused's mnd or

yours -- at that tine you say, well, he's likely to testify,

you are noving in the other direction
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Again, it is, as the Presiding Judge has said, proper

managenent, and the preparation, both by the Chanbers and the

other parties, as such. Obviously,

know that your client will testify,

f I'manother party and

may | ook and see the

differently. This is the whole purpose of all this at this

particular time. So if you change your mind and say, well,

we are not sure, well, how are we to nmanage this issue

MR NI COL- W LSON: Your Honour,

I think the Court will

suffer no di sadvantage, in terns of tine,

not to testify, at the end of the day.

if the accused

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But the Court also has to be treated

ut nost candor on matters of this nature which are so

It's a very inportant decision, whether an accused person

to testify or not to testify, and you know the constitutiona

prot ections surroundi ng such a deci sion

W are not certainly

going to nove one way or the other in terns of how we | ook at

deci si on one way or the other, but

be treated with candor and to know

it

is inportant that the

W |

he go into the
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stand or will he not, so that we effectively organi se how we
intend to hear the evidence.

JUDGE I TOE: | hope that, before long, before it is too
| ong, you would be able to informthe Chanber as to what your
position is.

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour. In fact we'll have

further consultations with the client and then we'll inform

Bench.
JUDGE | TCE: Right. Thank you.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. On expert w tnesses: You

filed an expert witness list, indicating that you intend to
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as age verification procedures and a

Woul d you explain this shift of

Yes, Your Honour.

First of all,

the record?

Yes, Your Honour.

That you have these experts --
Honour .

Yes, Your

while the report fromthe

is this a correct

denobi | i sation and rehabilitation

You indicated that the report by the first expert is

We note that at

you i ndi cated

be ready by the

-- DDR and age verification procedures

Yes, Your Honour.

-- and mlitary expert.

Two experts, Your Honour
Two experts, sorry.
Yes, Your Honour. Your Honour

t he
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reason for the delay in time is due to the process of

these experts and getting their contracts processed by the

The expert on age verification, his contract has only recently
been established. Wth the mlitary expert, we are yet to get

his formal contract signed and, as a result of these

del ays, that is why the reports will not be avail able now, as
prom sed before

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: There are no fundi ng problens; you

got over that one?
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MR NI COL-WLSON:  No, no funding problens. [It's just

process of --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Logi sti cs.

MR NI COL-WLSON: -- selecting the experts and getting
contracts prepared and signed and getting the work done.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: How soon will this be acconplished?

you want to put a tinefrane on it?
MR NI COL-WLSON: Yes. In ternms of the expert on age
verification, his report will be available by 16 July.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Jul y?

MR NI COL-WLSON:. Yes. And the mlitary expert, his

will be available by 13 August.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wy so | ate?
MR NI COL- WLSON: Because with the mlitary expert, Your

Honour, he has not actually -- he has not started conpiling

report yet; he has only given us an indication about what his
report will cover. This is because he has not been given a
formal contract, as | speak to Your Honours, and we intend to
expedite this process this week.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wen will a formal contract be

MR NI COL-WLSON: This week, Your Honour
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And so the formal contract is

this week. This is March; March to July is quite sone tine.

there a way of prompting him if that's what is the catal yst

producing the report, the contract? |Is there any way of
pronpting him

MR NI COL-WLSON: | think we will definitely do that,

Honour. | will pronpt himto get the report.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Much earlier.
MR NI COL- WLSON: Yes, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And the sane applying for the one on -

MR NI COL- W LSON: The age verification.
JUDGE THOMPSON: -- the age verification.

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour. We will pronpt them

get the report earlier than the anticipated dates.

JUDGE THOMPSON: Because you are not really sure whether
these reports are even ready.

MR NI COL-WLSON: At the nmoment, they are not ready.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: How are you so certain? Yes, excuse

Did you want to intervene?

M5 KAH JALLOW  Your Honour, if | may, | would like to
conment on this issue.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: For the Principal Defender's office?

M5 KAH JALLOW Yes, Your Honour. | am Haddijatou
Kah-Jallow. | amthe duty counsel for the RUF.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very wel |.

M5 KAH JALLOWN | would like to comment on the issue of

contracts, because this does fall within our purview As for

age verification witness, | wish to informthe Court that the
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contract has been prepared for himto comence on 5 March, and

with the mlitary expert, we are waiting for Defence counsel

give us instructions as to when they wish his contract to
comrence

The notivation that is necessitated in order to draft a
contract has already been done. W are awaiting the Defence
counsel to give us instructions. So | just wish to informthe

Court, for themto say that the blane lies on the issue of
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contract is not entirely true.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. WelIl, let's hear your response

that. That sounds |ike favourable information

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, she has not said

different fromwhat | inforned the Court about.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wyuld you like to expand on that?

MR Nl COL-W LSON: Yes, Your Honour. | informed the

earlier on that, with the age verification expert, he has a
contract already and we are waiting for the report. Wth the

mlitary expert, his contract has not been prepared, as

to Your Honours. Basically, that is what she is saying.

The issue of blanme does not follow, at this stage,

we are not blaming the Defence office for the contract -- for

contract not to have been prepared at this stage. W are not
apportioning blame to anybody.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wl |, preparation of contract or
concl usi on of contract?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Well both, Your Honours

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: \What does preparation invol ve?

MR NI COL- WLSON: Preparation has to be done by the
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office. It is the Defence office that prepares the contract.
Then that contract is signed by the Defence office, on the one
hand, and the expert on the other. Since we are naking the
request, we have to give an indication as to when we want this

contract to commence. |'msure the Defence office knows that

want this contract to commence as soon as possible. It is not

matter of informng themas to when this contract should
comrence. W want the contract to commence, even today.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, I'mintrigued. But |let her
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t hat .

M5 KAH JALLOWN  Your Honour, in respect to the military
expert, the contract has already been prepared, and he was
scheduled to start on the 15th.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: On 15 March?

M5 KAH JALLOWN Yes, Your Honour. So | really don't
understand - -

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: So the contract is ready?

M5 KAH JALLOWN The contract is ready, yes, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: What's the formality now that has to

complied with?
M5 KAH JALLOW | really don't know. Perhaps Defence

counsel would be in a better position to answer that. | do

that the contract is ready for the mlitary expert.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, okay. Justice Boutet.

JUDGE BOUTET: M N col-WIlson, it wuld appear that

are fairly inportant discrepancies, but ny question is not

on that. You are calling a mlitary expert. Obviously a

contract has not been signed yet. | asked counsel for the

accused if there were discussions, and apparently there has



t hat,

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

very limted discussion on experts being called. They are
calling a mlitary expert, you are calling a mlitary expert.
Wiy does the Court need to have two military experts? W are
dealing with the sane overall picture here, and this is why we
have a joint trial

| understand that the accused have a right to be
represented, and if they are to be dealt with in our findings,

they have to be dealt with individually. But | would think

as far as a mlitary expert is concerned, we wuld need not to
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have three or four of those experts. After a while it serves

useful purpose. So if you are calling a nmilitary expert, you

intend to call a mlitary expert, can | urge upon you to

and consult with counsel for the first accused, if only

there are limted funds for experts and naybe these funds

be better spent el sewhere

| amnot the counsel for Kallon, and | don't know what

defence is, but | would think that if you are a mlitary

there is a nmlitary expert. He talks about military

and the restructure and so on. | don't see how your client is
different than others, froma nilitary expert perspective, as
such. So that's ny main concern

Again, we are tal king of expeditiousness, and why we

two experts or three experts on one issue when the matter can

dealt with one expert. That's my first question
My other question on experts: You are abandoning the
question of DDR experts, | take it?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  No, Your Honour. This expert on age



19 verification will be tal king about the DDR as well, so it's

one
20 expert.
21 JUDGE BQUTET: So it's an expert having expertise in two
22 domai ns; one, age verification, and the other one on DDR?
23 MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, he is not an expert on
DDR,
24 t hough his expert report will cover the DDR process as well.
He
25 is an expert on age verification.
26 JUDGE BOUTET: Very well.
27 MR NI COL- W LSON: Then, on your first question, Your
28 Honour, speaking for M Kallon, the mlitary expert will be
29 tal ki ng about command and control in a guerilla novenent, as
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opposed to a regular army, with specific reference to the
Revol utionary United Front of Sierra Leone.

JUDGE BQUTET: How is this different fromthe first
accused?

MR Nl COL-WLSON: Well, Your Honour, | think the first

accused will have to speak for hinmself, or his counsel will
to speak --

JUDGE BOUTET: | know, but you may not have heard what |
saying. | need to be convinced that we need to have two or

reports frommlitary experts. This is a joint trial, as

That the RUF was or was not a guerilla novenent with a comon
structure in a particular way or not, we need not to hear that

fromtwo or three different experts. | think one expert would

suf ficient.
This is really my concern. And ny question to you: Wy

don't you discuss with the first accused to see if there is

common ground between what you are |looking for fromthis

with themso we don't have to deal with two nmilitary experts

MR NI COL-WLSON: Well, | think, Your Honour, the two
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experts will not be dealing with the sane issues, because

was a neeting earlier on between my |ead counsel and, | think

Sareta Ashraph on behalf of M Sesay. And we realise that the

paraneters the two experts will be dealing with are different.
JUDGE BOUTET: Well, this is not what | have heard. She

has nentioned, counsel for the first accused, that they had,

plainly, a discussion with you, but she has not indicated to

Court that there was no common grounds in between the two. In

fact, she has undertaken to have further discussion with you

these natters.
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MR NI COL- WLSON: Yes, Your Honour. I think we wll
further discussions. At the noment, | think these are two

separate issues that will be dealt with by these two expert
wi tnesses. Al so, Your Honours, our expert witness will be
speaki ng on behalf of M Kallon and not generally on behal f of
the RUF.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: |Is there sonething Ms Ashraph wants to
tell us?

M5 ASHRAPH: Only briefly, Your Honour. As | said, we

continue to have discussions. At the tinme | spoke with

M Touray, obviously we hadn't had in depth di scussions on

expert at that point in tine. But sinply to add that,

al though we are in a joint trial, they are separate, and

of the different positions, people occupying comand

in different areas the defendants may be at, there may be

difficulties in having one expert, even if there are two

experts. Cbviously we will continue to reviewthat. W are
goi ng to have a discussion and see whet her one expert is

possible. But, the fact is that --
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JUDGE BOQUTET: As | say, | still need to be convinced

you need two experts to tell ne about this. | mean, this is

same novenent, the sanme structure. Obviously, and | agree and

can see that they are different accused and they have the

to be calling their own witnesses, as such, because they have

be dealt with differently, and | can see this. But, having

that, | have difficulties -- you have to convince ne that when
you are talking froma mlitary structure perspective, the
perspective fromyour client and the perspective of the second

accused are different, even though they are in the sane
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1 Maybe that's the case. |If that is the case, then | wll just

2 listen and observe what happens.

3 M5 ASHRAPH. | ndeed, Your Honour. |If | may just add,

4 obviously it's a question of whether, in fact, there are

5 different Defence strategies, different Defence phil osophies.

6 The second is that obviously an expert may find material that
may

7 assi st one defendant nore than it might assist another
def endant .

8 That may have a bearing on whether there is going to be common

9 expert witness. Cbviously we now deeper into discussions on

10 those experts and, as |'ve said previously, we will continue
to

11 have di scussi ons.

. 12 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | urge you to expedite these

constructive

13 di scussi ons on both sides.

14 M5 ASHRAPH:. Yes, Your Honour.

15 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: The exhibit list, according to the

16 record, is 83 that you filed, and --

17 MR HARRI SON: |I'msorry. | apologise for interrupting.
18 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | do apol ogi se. o ahead
19 MR HARRI SON:  The Prosecution just wanted to make a

comment

20 with respect to the dates, which are forecast for the



21 availability and production of the two expert reports that

have
22 been put in place, or are being put in place by the second
23 accused.
24 The Prosecution wanted to advise the Court that it
foresees
25 the Defence case proceeding at a pace hopefully sinmlar to
t hat
26 in the CDF case and the AFRC case, where often four or five
27 wi tnesses would be heard in one day. |If that is a reasonable
28 forecast, then the Prosecution hopes that the second accused's
29 case is ongoing sonetine in July.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: M Nicol -WIson, what woul d be your
response to that?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, it depends on how | ong

case of M Sesay will be. | don't think the first accused --
this is the case of the second accused -- will be ongoing in
July. | envisage it will start in Septenber.

JUDCGE ITCE: | n what? Septenber?
MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour.
JUDGE I TOE: Wy in Septenmber, M Nicol-WIson?

MR NI COL- W LSON: Because there is an indication from

first accused that their case will go on for about three

JUDGE I TCE: W are not there. W are not to be taken
hostage to that indication. You followed M Ashraph, and she
sai d she was going to reduce -- they were going reduce, very

drastically, the nunber of witnesses. W understand this

affect the time it will take for themto close their Defence.

So let us work on this hypothesis rather than placing

conmencenent of your case speculatively in the nonth of
Septenber. That worries ne. Like ny colleague said, | don't
think you are interested either that we stay here for another

five years.
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PRESI DING JUDGE: M Nicol-Wlson, clearly | indicated

the question of reports conming in August, July, is certainly

unrealistic. W have heard from M Jallow that the contracts

ready, and | think you need to put the pressure on your

wi tnesses. The Court has a duty to expedite these

and we cannot wait for, shall | say, long periods of tine

we get a report in respect of the trial that we are having

I think you need to put that pressure.
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As | said, | express ny own little skepticism |'m not

sure whether those reports are not even ready. But the

of whether the contract, the signing of the contract, is not

triggers off the production of the report. | think you need

do that; it's inmportant. You don't need an order fromthe

to force your experts to wite their report. | amsure you

be as persuasive as you can. But definitely July and August

unrealistic. Definitely unrealistic.

MR Nl COL-W LSON: Yes, Your Honour. |In fact, | have

been informed by ny assistants that what is still not

is the expert's P11 form and once that is filled, then the
contract can be signed.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.

MR NI COL-WLSON: So we are going to put pressure --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, we urge you to do that.

you mi ght appear to be frustrating the process.

JUDGE | TOE: So we now understand that the ball is nore

your court than it is in the court of the Defence Ofice.
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MR NI COL-WLSON:.  Well, Your Honour, | think it's partly

the court of the Defence office.
JUDGE I TOE: Because if your expert -- if you haven't

gotten your expert to fill the P - what do you call it - the

MR NI COL-WLSON: But this has to be done by the Defence
Ofice, not --

JUDGE | TOE: But you have to urge him He is your

you have to bring him It's not for the Defence office to

himto come. He is your witness, principally, and it's for

to bring all the pressure for himto cone and accel erate the

process.
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MR NI COL- W LSON: Yes, Your Honour.

JUDGE ITOE: | think if it cane to it, we would place

ball nmore in your court to --
MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour.

JUDGE I TOE: -- ensure that he signs this formas

as he coul d.

MR NI COL- W LSON: Yes, Your Honour. But on nmatters of

contract for the expert witness, this has to be dealt with by

Def ence office, not --

JUDGE | TOE: But the Defence office says the contract is
ready.

MR NI COL-WLSON: But the P11 is not avail able.

JUDGE | TOE: But you have to get your witness to cone

sign the P11, or to fill it.
MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour.
JUDGE | TCE: Get himon board, please.
MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ms Jal | oh, you want to --
M5 KAH JALLOW  Your Honours, thank you very nuch for

granting ne audience. | don't want to waste the Court's tinme,
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but a P11 has to be filled by the witness, | nean by the

witness. W, in the Defence office, don't have the personal
history information of their experts. They fill it and --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, let's urge you to cooperate.
M5 KAH JALLOW That is our --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: M Nicol-Wlson --
M5 KAH JALLOW That's the procedure. Thank you.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: -- please take advantage of this offer

com ng from Ms Jal | oh.
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1 MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour

2 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Exhibit list, 83. No indication of

3 whet her the Prosecution has any objection to the authenticity.

4 Is that the same position you have that you have not seen the

5 exhi bits?

6 MR HARRI SON:  Yes, it's the sanme position. This list is
. 7 obvi ously nuch shorter as is that of the third accused. And
i

8 the second accused has no concern as to providing all of the

9 docunents referred to, | believe that nost of themare, in
fact,

10 docunents produced by the Prosecution; some are not. But if
t hey

11 woul d be forwarded to us, then we can make an indication
per haps

12 as early as by the end of this week.

13 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Did you hear that?

14 MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honours. Just are a ninor

15 correction. The exhibit list is 18, not 83. That's annex F,

16 which is 26709. Ei ghteen, 1-8.

17 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: That's refreshing. The evidentiary
chart

18 filed on behalf of your client was found to be generally
accurate
. 19 and there are only a few di screpanci es between the w tness

1 st

20 and the evidentiary chart in respect of w tnesses DWK-131
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DWK- 048, DMK-058 and DWK-115. So we hope you can rectify
what ever defi ci enci es exi st.
MR NI COL- WLSON:  Yes, Your Honour. We will.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Joint statenents of agreed facts. You

filed, together with the Prosecution, a joint statement of

facts containing 14 agreed facts. The statenent does not
i ndicate any contested matters of fact and law. Any comments?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, anything outside these

i's contested.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. |Is that so, M Harrison?
MR HARRI SON:  Yes, that's certainly ny understanding.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very well. Materials filed by --

you.
MR NI COL- W LSON: Your Honours --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: |Is there anything el se you want to

MR NI COL-WLSON: There is just one issue which is not

the agenda item on behal f of the second accused, and that is
common W t nesses
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. What's your position?

MR NI COL-WLSON: |'ve been instructed by ny |ead

M Shekou, to seek direction from Your Honours as to the issue

comon w t nesses between the different accused persons.
Firstly, we think that we shall have a joint Defence
meeting in which we shall agree on these comobn witnesses, you

know. But in the event that we do not have an agreenent in

common w tnesses, we want to know whether we can still have

right to call sone of these witnesses after they have been

by, say, for instance, the first accused.



20 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: In other words, whether you have a

ri ght

21 to circunvent the process?

22 MR Nl COL- WLSON:  Well --

23 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: M | earned brother, Justice Boutet,
woul d

24 like to coment on this.

25 JUDGE BOUTET: | amnot sure | fully understand your

26 guestion. On the one end, | can assert to what | perceive
your
_ 27 question to be. W have dealt with these issues, as you know,
in

28 the CDF trial. The common witnesses have been call ed, and
t hey

29 have been dealt with.
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If it is you calling the witness that is common to the
others, as such, you and other parties are examn ning-in-chi ef
that particular witness. Then it noves to the Prosecution to
cross-exam ne and then you have a right of re-examni nation, so
this is the standard procedure |ike any other wtness.

If it is common, it's common and therefore this w tness

once he's called, cannot be recall ed again, unless you

the Court that this witness is now essential for other

as such. The nere fact that the witness has not given

that was not to your satisfaction will not allow you to recal

the witness. A witness that has been called will not

be recall ed.

MR NI COL- W LSON: Your Honours, the direction | am

is just in a situation wherein a witness is called, let's say,
for instance, by the first accused, and that witness testifies

but limts his testinony only to that of the first accused.

we still have an interest in this wtness.

JUDGE BQUTET: Are you tal king of a conmon wi tness here

a non-common W t hess?
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MR NI COL-WLSON:.  Well, we will say that particul ar

is a commbn w tness, because this is a witness for whom we

wi tness statenent from and for whom ot her Defence teans m ght

have witness statenments as well. But then the w tness might

exam ned in such a manner that the witness limts his

to only that of the party calling him

JUDGE BOQUTET: That's what |'ve just explained. After

first accused has dealt with this particular wtness, as such

you then exami ne that witness. And you can put to that

whatever it is you want to put to that witness as if it were
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witness. | mean, it's not only because the witness is called
first accused that you have no right to question that w tness.

He's common or he's not commpn. It's not the first accused

will ask all the questions on behalf of your client.

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, the disadvantage we

envi sage we're going to suffer is the fact that we have a

of witnesses who we would like to call, you know, for the

time by the Kallon Defence team These witnesses already are
al so witnesses for the Sesay Defence teamand there is a

I'ikelihood they will be called by the Sesay Defence team

we wanted to elicit evidence fromthem you know, through

exam nation-in-chief rather than through cross-exam nation

woul d be favourable to our case. So that is the kind of

probl em - -

JUDGE BOUTET: |'m not saying you should go by
cross-exam nation. | told you you do exani nation-in-chief.
not saying that you should do cross-exam nation. |If it's a

common wi tness and you question this witness, you question

witness in chief not as in cross-exani nation.
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MR Nl COL-W LSON: So, Your Honours, who will determ ne -

JUDGE I TOE: No. You nmust -- I'mafraid you nust agree

you nust agree beforehand that they are common witnesses.

is the basis on which you can exam ne-in-chief, and he, too,

exam ne-in-chi ef.

JUDGE BOUTET: This is the procedure we followed in the

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: That's what | understand it to be. |

don't know why you want to go the other way. That's why I

that, perhaps, you are seeking sonme directions as to howto
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circunvent what is, in fact, a laid-down procedure. What is

difficulty of designating ahead of time that these are comon
Wi t nesses?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Well, Your Honours, in the absence of
such an agreenent, Your Honours will have to decide --

JUDGE I TOE: No, No. W don't want to get into that.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: W are not --

JUDGE I TOE: We don't want to inpose conmmbn witnhesses on

the parties. This is a decision for the parties. | think if

do not arrive at that determnation, | don't see why you
shoul dn't, anyway, because you're all conducting a defence
virtually on the sane side, even though you have different

clients. | don't see why there should be any real difficulty

arriving at the commonality of facts which characterise your
respected Defence teans. | fail to see that.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Your invitation sounds |ike asking the
judges to descend into the arena.

MR NI COL-WLSON. Not at this stage, Your Honour. Not

this stage
JUDGE BOUTET: No, not at this stage, but we are not

prepared to descend into the arena at any stage. So the
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as | put it to you, has been the process we followed in the

If you are not content with that, you nmay decide this wtness

be nore favourable to you because you want to cross-exan ne

That's your call. This is exactly what you have to assess.
W're not there to do the work for you. But, certainly, if a

wi tness has been called by the first accused, as such, and

when you cone to your case you want to call the very sane

wi tness, as we have given it to you, it is highly unlikely
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1 it wll be received with positive favour.
2 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wl |, brainstormyoursel ves when you
get
3 into your constructive discussions and see what creative
4 solutions you come out with. You' re always capabl e of some
5 creative solutions, and you can cone for sone endorsenent, if
we
6 consider it appropriate and in line with our stipulated
7 procedur e.
8 MR NI COL- W LSON:  Yes, Your Honour
9 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Let's nove on to the third accused.
. 10 Materials filed by counsel for the third accused: witness
I st
11 and witness sunmaries. The records show that the Defence for
t he
o6 12 third accused filed a core witness list containing a total of
f 13 core witnesses and a back-up witness list containing a total
0
14 13, one of which is a Rule 92bis witness.
- 15 The Chamber notes that, at the status conference held on
16 Cct ober |l ast year, M Jordash, on behalf of M O Shea,
i ndi cat ed
17 that the Defence prelimnarily estinmated a total of 50 core
18 Wi t nesses, but that this figure mght increase. 1| see

19 Prof essor O Shea shaking his head. You'll probably disagree
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under st andi ng,

23
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not
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to

28

29

these statistics. Please guide us.

MR O SHEA: No, Your Honour. It's just the conment

what happened at the status conference. It's ny

and | may be wong about this, what M Jordash had indicated

that we, at that point in time, had 50 witnesses. |If that's

what he said --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Not core wi tnesses, okay.

MR O SHEA: -- then that's not what | neant when | spoke

M Jordash. Wuat |1'd said to M Jordash was that we had 50

Wi tnesses at the tinme of the status conference.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Fifty, meaning inclusive of core and
back- up?

MR O SHEA: W hadn't nmde any deci sions about that at

time.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Categorisation. Right.

MR O SHEA:  Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Wuld you enlighten us on that at this
st age?

MR O SHEA: The position of the third accused is that we
still have substantial investigations to go. Wth regard to

W tnesses that we have identified, there are a nunber of

wi t nesses that have not yet been evaluated by counsel. All

Wi t nesses have been seen by the investigator, but there are a

group of wi tnesses who have not yet been eval uated by counsel

suspect that what's going to happen is that sone of the

that we have identified, we will, having eval uated them as
counsel, decide that they are not appropriate.

So, anong the 66, | think that there nmay be sone that we
will later decide we should not call, but there are also -- as

Your Honours know, our investigations started quite late in



21 day, and we've also had difficulties with certain categories

of

22 Wi tnesses. So our investigations are far from conplete.
That's

23 the difficulty I"'min, with regard to giving exactitude to the

24 Court on a nunber of w tnesses.

25 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: So, roughly speaking, you're not in a

26 position to tell us whether you are likely to come up with a

27 figure higher than 66, or less than that? |In other words, we
are

28 in asort of linbo situation; is that what you are sayi ng?

29 MR O SHEA: Unfortunately, yes, Your Honour, because
it's

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |



Page 51

i ntention

pr evi ous

t here

cause

t he

position

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

SESAY ET AL

20 MARCH 2007 OPEN SESSI ON

very difficult --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And regrettably, too.

MR O SHEA: Regrettably. If I'"mgoing to be candid with
the Court, it's very difficult for me to nake any definitive
statenent on nunbers, at this stage.

VWhat | can say, it is nmy intention and it is the

of M Cammegh, and we operate like this, as counsel, in

cases we have been operating, in that, you know, we are not

to waste the Court's tine. We realise that witnesses can

prejudice to the accused, as well as benefit, and we will do
everything in our power to ensure that we only call those
wi tnesses who are there to benefit the accused. Wth that in

mnd, | can nake a prediction that perhaps our position, at

end of the day, will be nore optimstic than envi saged.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Optimistic neaning?
MR O SHEA: A | ow nunber of witnesses.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Low nunber of witnesses.

MR O SHEA: | nean, | can say that that's been the

in previous cases | have been involved in, is that --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And one tends to go by that precedent;



21 that what you are saying?

22 MR O SHEA: Yes. But, that having been said, the

23 indictment that M Ghao is facing is very wide-ranging. In
terns

24 of the actual evidence against Ghao, | appreciate that there
are

25 certain areas which we have to concentrate on, but the
al | egati on

26 agai nst us, because of the forns of liability enpl oyed, have
been

27 quite wi de-ranging. There are areas of the indictnent that we

28 have not yet nanaged to get witnesses for, either because the

29 Wi t nesses have not yet agreed to speak to us or because we
have
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1 not | ocated themyet.

2 JUDGE BOUTET: M O Shea, | ama bit surprised by some
of

3 your comments when you are saying you have not yet evaluated -

4 counsel, either yourself or M Cammegh, have been able to

5 eval uate the witnesses that you intend to call. | nean, we
are

6 in March. The trial -- the Prosecution's case was cl osed
quite a

7 long, long tinme ago, and you're talking of 50 witnesses since
t he

8 time the Prosecution has closed their case. And, now, you

9 haven't had the tine to evaluate these witnesses and you are

10 comng here today to tell us that? | nean, if we had
pr oceeded

11 as it was planned, at the outset, in January, as such, we
woul d

12 be in very, very serious trouble, | guess.

13 MR O SHEA: Well, Your Honour will appreciate that
counsel

14 are not resident here in Sierra Leone.

15 JUDGE BOUTET: Well, | mean, how you nanage your case is

16 your own call.

17 MR O SHEA: Yes.

18 JUDGE BOUTET: | nean, we are not here to tell you what

you
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may do, or may not do. W are just asking you, howis it

at this late stage, you have not yet -- | mean, it would

fromyour comments that you have not nade any assessnent of

wi tnesses, as such. | ama bit surprised to see this. As |

whet her you are calling 50 or 60 or 75 witnesses, and if you

maki ng this assessnent and, as you have said, it nay be that

today that you would tell us you are calling only 20

but you are in no position to say that because you haven't net

these witnesses. You have not made your assessnent, and we

in March.

MR O SHEA: Well, let nme nodify, to sonme extent, what |
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said if it's led to the inpression that we haven't eval uated

of our witnesses. W've evaluated a | ot of our w tnesses

personal ly, but there are a group of w tnesses that we have

eval uated. Mbst of those wi tnesses we have not eval uat ed.

statements were only obtained shortly before the filing.

The last tine | was in Sierra Leone was about a nonth

I went to one area of Sierra Leone, and | spent a few days

and | was seeing w tnesses back-to-back. W are making the

efforts that we can to ensure that we eval uate our w tnesses

qui ckly as possible. But we also are third on the indictment.
That's not to say that these matters are not urgent, but, from

counsel 's point of view, perhaps not fromthe Chanber's point

view, but fromcounsel's point of view, we still have a little

bit of time so far as counsel's eval uati on of the w tnesses

concer ned.

That's not to say that we are delaying matters
deliberately. Every time counsel is conming to Sierra Leone we
are seeing witnesses, as nuch as we can, but a lot of these

Wit nesses, their statenments only canme to us very recently.



20 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Are you taking that as a kind of

wi ndow

21 of opportunity, the fact that you are third in the indictnment?

22 MR O SHEA: Well, the position is that, had we been
first

23 on the indictment, we would be in real difficulties.

24 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, fine.

25 MR O SHEA: It's just fortunate, in the circunstances,
t hat

26 we are third on the indictnent.

27 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And you want to exploit that to the

28 maxi mum advantage, as it were?
. 29 MR O SHEA: Well, we want to ensure that the accused is
in
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no way prejudiced by us not having found all the evidence
avai | abl e.

JUDGE BOUTET: But |I'mstill concerned by your | ateness

doing so, nore so that you have advanced the argunent that you
were quite late for the investigation because, and because is

because of the situation that had existed, that existed

yourself and the third accused
MR O SHEA: Yes.

JUDGE BOUTET: And this is a known fact. But if that

have caused sone difficulties, it would appear that you should

maki ng up for that |ost opportunity at the time now. You're
saying that, in spite of all that, you don't have the tine to

fully explore and neet with all the witnesses you intend to

That's my concern at this time. And, if | can add, you

you produced statenments just at the last nonment. In fact,

of the statenments, the summary that you have, are very
i nadequate, so, which is -- the fact that you are third to be
called still requires of you to file certain docunents by a

certain date, as such. There is no exception because you are
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third in line by your position to the others. That's ny

as to how you are conplying with the request that you have to
provide the Court with

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. And | would add to that by

How effective, if | can ask you for a candid assessnment, are

operational strategies in trying to acconplish these goals of

interviewi ng witnesses and making the final deternination as

what the nunber would be? Because | amtrying to put mnyself

your position where one would want to work out the nodalities

the process that you engaged in, and how effective are they,
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how productive, because you seemto be using that as one of

reasons why you are not able to conmply with the order of the
Court.
MR O SHEA: Well, is it the position that we have not

conplied with the order of the Court?

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, | nean, in the sense that, as
regards the sumaries, | was coning to the verdict of the
that, generally, nost of themwere found to be inadequate. It

may require that you will have to go back and rectify sone of

di scl osed deficiencies. But there is a timefranme within which
these filings should be done, and if -- what | nmean by

non- conpliance, is that if you have filings that turn out not

be in strict conpliance with the Court's order, then there is

way of saying that there has been non-conpliance.
MR O SHEA: Well, the sunmaries that we provided --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Cenerally, they were found to be vague

and insufficient and did not neasure up to the standard that

Chanber has laid down in terms of specificity and

Again, the legal office will help you identify --

MR O SHEA: Well, it nay be that that conmes down to the
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statenents taken fromthe w tnesses.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, quite.

MR O SHEA: Because the summaries were taken fromthe
statenments that we obtained.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.

MR O SHEA: In the case of sone w tnesses, we don't yet
have statenents.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And that's why | pose the question of

effective are your operational strategies in performng this
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task, because |I am |l ooking at the productivity, the output of

effort. Maybe you need to rethink some of your strategies.

MR O SHEA: Well, ny understanding of the summari es,

Honour, with respect, is that we should be putting the

Prosecution on notice as to what the witnesses are going to

with. [If it's envisaged that these summari es are supposed to

of a detailed analysis of what the witnesses are going to say,

have sone difficulty with that froma point of view of a

strategy.

I nmean, the Prosecution's summaries that were provided

us gave us notice of what the witnesses were going to dea

but I amnot sure to what extent they were nore detailed than

sunmari es we have provi ded.

JUDGE BOQUTET: Well, with one major difference: You

given statenents of these witnesses and you are not being

to provide any statenent to the Prosecution. This is quite a

substantial difference. A witness that you call are giving
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sunmmary, as such. |It's over and above the fact that they had

obligation to disclose to you any docunents they had in their

possession, including statenents nade by those wi tnesses,

you don't have to do. Al you have, what you were requested

do, is give a detailed sunmary of what the evidence will be

And, again, as to what your position nay or may not be,

have stated in the CDF, and we have referred to that -- the

Presi ding Judge has referred to it when we were talking to the
counsel for the second accused -- as to what is expected to be
contai ned in those statenments, as such. This is not sonething
new. This is the policy and the direction that we followed in

the previous trial, as such. Because the options are quite
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sinmple: You either provide sufficient information or you will

ordered to disclose statenents.

So we said, repeatedly, that we were not to put the

under the obligation to disclose to the Prosecution w tness
statenment. But they had to provide sufficient information, so

that's the direction that we have issued, and this is what we

still proceeding with, M O Shea.

MR O SHEA: Well, | hope, to sone extent --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, it's not a difficult situation
Al'l you need to do is to | ook up our decision in the CDF case

where the order we issued on 2 March | ast year, entitled

to the First Accused to Refile Sumuaries of Wtness

and, in particular, order 2 thereof. It will help you to see
exactly what the Chanber expects in ternms of conpliance as to
specificity and particularity.

MR O SHEA: Your Honour, may | just suggest that

we are not too far away from each other in ternms of
understanding, in the sense that | appreciate that sone of the

sunmari es are inadequate. Sonme of the summaries are

It is not ny understanding that nost of them are.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE

t hat i ssue.

MR O SHEA:  Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE

Vel |,

| woul d not,

in fact, debate you

I think, though, it would be fair

representation to say sone are and sone are not. Yes. Al

right.

MR O SHEA: And the reason why | raise that is because
ones that | believe are adequate, | amconcerned if we are
to be forced to provide nore detail, there are a nunber of
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summari es where we have basically covered all the areas that

witness is going to talk about. W haven't, basically,

repeated the statenment. Sonme of the witness statements are

two or three pages long. But a summary which is, say, ten

long, in ny subm ssion, in ternms of what we provided to the
Court, fairly represents what the witness is going to say
according to the information that we have from our statenents.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Provided they relate to essentials.
MR O SHEA:  Yes.

PRESI DING JUDGE: Quite. | nean, if you take a three-

statement, and extract fromthat three-page statenent three

par agr aphs that have nothing to do with matters of a core

but matters for peripheral or tangential nature, it cannot be
obj ectively said that you have faithfully reproduced that

statement in sumrary form

MR O SHEA: Well, | hope we haven't done that.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: No. | amjust giving a hypothetical
si tuati on.

MR O SHEA: Yes. | do know that there are sone

which are four or five lines |ong, which would appear to be
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i nadequate, and | amreferring to a specific docunent. In

cases, it is because we did not have w tness statenents from

wi t nesses, and we were working fromthe notes of the

investigator. That's the reason for that. It's not that we

information that we are hiding.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.
MR O SHEA: But with regard to the other summaries which

are longer, ten, 12, 15 lines long, we have tried to

i ndi cate those exact areas that the witness is going to dea
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with. And, as | say, it's ny understanding that that's our

It's not nmy understanding that we are supposed to tell the
Prosecution exactly what the witness is going to state.
JUDGE ITCE: In fact, | was going step in here at this

point to say that what we are saying is a smaller debate. As

matter of fact, | think you have the | arger debate, you know,

with the Prosecution. WII the Prosecution be satisfied with

sunmari es you provided to then? That is when the real debate,
you know, will start, in which we'll involve ourselves to

det ermi ne whet her the summaries, you know, are adequate or

We are only putting you on guard at this point in tinme

say that some of your summaries have not lived up to the order
that we've made. But when it comes to that, it will be the

option of the Prosecution to make as to whether these

whi ch are provided are adequate, or whether they wll insist

we order you, which is what the Rules authorise us to do, to
produce the real statenents instead of the summary.

So, really, the Prosecution is very nuch involved in

debate. But we are just putting you on guard as to what we
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seen about the sunmaries which are produced. If the

is satisfied that the summary which is done in just three

or four lines is adequate, well, that is not our business. |
mean, we get along. It is for us to know what the stand, you

know, of the Prosecution is on the summary that you have

and to strike the balance and nake our position very clear,
dependi ng on the application that the Prosecution will make at
that point in tine.

MR O SHEA: | appreciate that Your Honour's coment is

meant to be helpful. What | will dois | will go through the
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summari es that we have provided, and | can see that there are

sone which, as | say, are three or four lines |ong, which

give the inpression that we haven't made a sufficient effort.

| say, the reason for that is because we don't have statenents

relation to those particular witnesses. | wll try and

that issue by going back to those witnesses

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. Well, let's get to the rubric

your client appearing as a witness. At the status conference

hel d on 27 October | ast year, you stated that he has indicated

intention to testify at the trial
Now, | think, you have indicated that he will testify

pursuant to 85(C) of the Rules, although he is seeking to

the right to change his position. Wy are we in this rather
equi vocal position? And, again, there has been a significant
gravitational shift fromdefinitiveness to a penunbra of
uncertainty.

MR O SHEA: The status conference that Your Honour is
referring to, is that the one where M Jordash spoke on ny
behal f?

PRESIDING JUDGE: | recall, yes. Quite right. You take
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issue with that?
MR O SHEA: Well, | -- we are in a difficult position
because I'mvery grateful to M Jordash

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: He said he was your accredited

MR O SHEA: Yes. Yes, and he was and |'mvery gratefu
for --

JUSTICE I TOE: But he was not very -- if | renenber, he

not very definitive on this issue as to whether your client

going to testify or not. | renenber very well
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MR O SHEA: | amglad to hear that because | thought for

monent he had been. But | have never been, as far as | can

recall, definitive on this issue, up until now. | would urge

Chanber to exercise particular patience on this issue with
M  Gbao.
As a matter of --

JUDGE | TOE: Wiy do you underscore the word

What is special about that? |It's different from other cases.

MR O SHEA: Well, all | can indicate to the Court is

am not ready, as counsel, to make this decision because there

issues that | need to resolve with the client. | know what

intentions of M Gbhao are, but | amnot ready to nake a

to the Court about M Gbhao. |[Mcrophones not activated] |

know how you did that, Your Honour, but it was very clever

Because | understand in the ICTY there is actually a button

the Judges can press to switch off counsel's m crophone.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | didn't want to do that.
JUDGE I TOE: We have one, too, here. W hardly ever use

it. You see how generous we have been to you
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MR O SHEA: Yes. | would urge the Court not to pressure

to make a decision on whether M Gbao testifies at this
particular point intime. | wll make every effort to reach a

definitive decision on that as soon as | can, but | amjust

ready to make that deci sion.
JUDGE BOUTET: When is "as soon as you can" to be?

Tonorrow or next week? Because, again, | know your client may

difficult. W can observe that he has attended at tines and a
lot of those times he has not. But, the Court is not to be

paying the price for the attitude of your client, as such
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I nmean, | understand you rmay be in a difficult position,
but we need to know and we need to be able to nove ahead. And
that applies not only to you but to all parties concerned. |
know and | appreciate M O Shea that you are in a difficult

predi canent at tines, but you will appreciate that we have to

and understand what is going on as well. So that's why | say

will not inpose upon you that you give an answer today. W

appreci ate what you are saying, but we will not delay this for

very, very long period of tine.

MR O SHEA:  Yes.

JUDGE BQUTET: As | say, the fact that M Ghao -- that's
why you' ve been appointed as Court-appointed counsel for this
client because of the way -- his attitude in Court.

MR O SHEA: Well, Your Honour will appreciate that the

deci sion as to whether an accused should testify or not can,

certain cases, be a very difficult one to make.

JUDGE BOQUTET: | appreciate that. But what | am sayi ng,

O Shea, is if your client, for his own personal reason, is not

giving you information, and so on and whatever it is, that's

I nean. W cannot be in a position where we have to say,
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it's very unfortunate, but M O Shea doesn't have

therefore, we have to do it. You understand what | am sayi ng?

MR O SHEA: Well, it's not an issue of instructions;

tell the Court that. It's not an issue of himnot providing

instructions, but |I have to be very, very careful as counse

to put ny foot init, as it were, for the accused.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. Well, it is a judgnent call

a professional judgnent call, whether you -- decide whether

approve of your client going into the witness stand or not.
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I ampretty sure that you have all the various vari ables

you and, of course, some of the variables will evolve, in

of other testinonies. But, clearly, this is sonething that

Court can't even venture to want to dictate. |It's just that

will expect a decision one way or the other within a

time. But, we are not in any way playing down the gravity of

prof essional conmitnment and difficulty in terns of howthis
particul ar decision is reached.

But, for our purposes, and to preserve the integrity of

judicial process, at sone point in time, and to be fair to the
Prosecution, we certainly need to know whether he intends to

testify on his own behalf or not. 1t does affect the sequence

the presentation of evidence.
MR O SHEA: Well, Your Honour did indicate earlier, and
this was sonething | hadn't appreciated, that the Bench nay be

expecting the accused to provide a summary of what they are

to say.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: That's inportant for us, yes, for

purposes -- since this is an adversarial process and not an



20 inquisitorial process, the other side would need to know.

21 Because, remenber, it's going to be testinony under oath and
t he

22 other side will be entitled to cross-exam ne the w tness and

23 that's the difficulty.

24 JUDGE ITCE: And, if | may add, he is a witness; nothing

25 |l ess and nothing nore. He is a witness. And if it is
expect ed

26 that summaries of the testinony are provided to the other
si de,

27 to the Prosecution, he should not be considered as an
exception.

28 He's testifying as a witness and he's coming there in that

29 capacity. So they need to know what is coming in advance, |
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woul d say; what he's coming to say before he takes the witness
st and.

MR O SHEA: He is a special witness, though

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. And the situation would be |ess
conplicated in the context of the nunicipal |aw system in
certain systens where an accused person can, in fact, make a

statement, unsworn statenent, fromthe dock, you know, at the

of his case. And nobody -- you are not required to cross-

on an unsworn statenent, but that is not the situation here.
MR O SHEA: Yes. Yes, | have a deep disconfort with the

i dea of providing a sutmary of what the accused is going to

but obviously we will conply with any orders the Court makes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But, of course, your disconfort has to

factored into the Defence avowed position that we function in

context of the doctrine of equality of arns, and | would have
t hought that you should not really feel that disconfort, since

they are entitled to know ahead of tine, if your client is

to be a witness, what he has to say.
MR O SHEA: Yes. Well, Your Honour, the doctrine of

equality of arns, all well and be it, but this is the trial of
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the accused. So, with respect, we have to be careful about

application of that doctrine when it comes to the accused.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, you're hoisted by your own
[indiscernible]. Sonetines you invoke it with such vigor and
strong articul ation.

MR O SHEA: That is true.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But that's just a point.

JUDGE BOUTET: And the Prosecution has to have

time to be able to investigate whatever your client may be
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sayi ng, as such, which is no different from your perspective.

When the Prosecution was calling w tnesses you insisted, at

very strongly, that information be disclosed to you and, in

cases, when infornmation was di sclosed too | ate or w tnesses

to testify and testified about matters you were unaware of, as
such, you asked for a judgnent, you asked for further
information. So why is it different because it's coming from
your side?

MR O SHEA: Because it's his trial

JUDGE BOQUTET: Well, it's his trial but these are the
Rul es. | nean, what can | say?

MR O SHEA:  Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And what about expert witness for your

side? There was an indication that you have not identified

sui tabl e expert witness.
MR O SHEA: VYes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: W are also particularly concerned not

duplicate or undermine expert testinony to be presented by the

other two accused persons. | nean, you're the only one who

come out to sort of, probably in favour of econom sing expert
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testinony, or not nultiplying expert testinony. But there was

some indication, also, that you intend to instruct an expert

the nature of guerrilla novenents with particular reference to
t he RUF.

MR O SHEA:  Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Can you update us on that?

MR O SHEA: Yes, Your Honours. | was very reluctant to
take definitive steps in relation to the question of experts

until | had a clearer idea of what the other two accused were
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going to do. The early consultations that |'ve had neant that

was not in a position to know which experts were going to be
called by the other two accused or what the contents of their
reports would be. | subscribe very nuch to the concern of His

Honour Judge Boutet. | am concerned about a battle of

That havi ng been said, we have been placed in a position

wher eby we are between a rock and a hard place, in that we

wait for that information and we have to proceed ahead.

The one expert that | think we are actively | ooking for

the moment is, as Your Honour has indicated, an expert on the

nature of guerrilla novenents, because we do think it's

for our case.
If M Sesay's expert fits the bill, it is not ny
to call another expert. But, at this particular point in
we don't have an expert for the Court, but if we feel it's in
interests of our client to call one, we will seek |leave to do
And we are actively |looking for an expert on guerrilla
PRESI DI NG JUDGE

Very well. The exhibit list,
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to our records, that you have filed, contains a total of 12
exhibits; is that correct?

MR O SHEA: That's correct, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And there is no indication fromthe
Prosecution as to whether there is any objection as to their
authenticity.

MR HARRI SON:  No, and | apol ogise. W should have

to this matter earlier. Seven of those docunents are, in

ones - | think it's seven - are ones that were in fact

by the Prosecution and disclosed. The other five are,

in large part, photographs. This is a matter which the
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Prosecution anticipates being able to resolve before the end

this week and to provide the Court with a witten docunent
confirm ng.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Al right. Thank you

MR O SHEA: Well, the photographs that are referred to

phot ogr aphs we' ve taken, so probably authenticity won't be an

i ssue. There may be other issues of admssibility, | don't

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Al right. Evidentiary charts. You
filed one, indicating for each paragraph of the indictnment the
testinmonial and docunentary evidence you intend to rely on

The Chanber is of the view that the evidentiary chart

contain some inaccuracies and di screpanci es and, perhaps, you

want to work closely with our legal officers to identify some

those problens. For exanple, you want to | ook at the

B-43, B-11, et cetera. But | suggest you establish a link

the legal officer on that so that you can correct the
di screpanci es.
MR O SHEA: | would be grateful for that, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And joint statements of agreed facts
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5 March this year. W denied an application by you for a
post ponement, | think, of the deadline for filing of the joint

statenent of agreed facts. Despite this denial, you

filed, on the sane day, a document entitled "Gbhao Joint

of Agreed Facts and Matters and Joint Statenent of Contested

Matters of Facts and Law' in which you stated that you have

been able to finalise with the Prosecution a |limted nunber of

facts you feel can be agreed upon, and that you will endeavour

do so as soon as possible.

On 8 March, the Prosecution indicated that it has not
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agreed to each of the five facts proposed by the Defence,

al t hough di scussions with the Defence will continue. The

notes, fromthe same Defence docunent, that you contest all

facts contained in the indictnent, and also that you have not
reached, at this stage, any agreenent with the Prosecution on
matters of law. |s that a correct reflection of the state of
your filing?

MR O SHEA: Your Honour, yes. On 5 March we received

deci si on of Your Honours. W had about three hours to do what

could to conply with Your Honours' decision and put matters

we felt we could put independently. | say independently,

Your Honours will renmenber that our concern was that we w shed

reach agreenent with the other accused before we reached
agreenent with the Prosecution. But Your Honours did not fee
that was sufficient justification for a delay, so we put five
matters which we felt may be able to put independently wi thout
putting us in any conflict with the other accused. As Your

Honour has indi cated, none of those matters have been agreed

by the Prosecution. W will continue to try to identify
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matters that we can request the Prosecution to agree to.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: So we now have an inpasse between the
Prosecution and the Defence?
MR O SHEA: Well, not really an inpasse, Your Honour

because it's sinply that the Prosecution is not prepared to

to the propositions of facts that we have placed before them

JUDGE I TOE: Let nme say this: | think the solution

If you cannot agree, then the Chamber woul d presume that the
matters on whi ch you have not been able to agree upon are

contested, and we proceed that way.
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MR O SHEA: Yes.

JUDGE | TCE: Because we will not actively intervene, at
this stage, to say, no, you should agree on this, you should
agree on that. No. That's not our business. So if you can't
agree, we would presune and assune, of course, that there is
total disagreenent on at |east those issues for which you have

not been able to arrive at an agreenment. And if it is in

of all the issues, we take it at that and proceed, and see

the evidence will turn out to be.

JUDGE BOUTET: | would |like to make a comment, too, as

the fact that you're saying | had only three hours. | should
point out to you that, in our decision, we did refer to the

procedural history. Since 30 Cctober 2006, you know t hat

were to be agreed to and these discussions shoul d have taken

pl ace. oviously, if you approach the Prosecution the day

you' re supposed to file, you were running out of time. So
reiterate here ny previous comments as to the duration of this
case in this respect.

Certainly, the last day is a bit late to get into

di scussion to present an agreed statenent of facts, and
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we got into this kind of discussion. And with the statenent,

light of this decision, the Defence teamfor the third accused
has approached the Prosecution with a limted nunber of facts.

This is not what we expect, M O Shea. | know you know
that, that, as a professional, this is not what we were asking

you to do. At the last nonent, because of our decision, you

not produced them In fact, you are stating to Court that you

have approached the Prosecution with an agreed statenent of

that shoul d have been done nonths ago. Months ago. Wy is it
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. 1 the last monent? And now you are trying to say, well, that's

a

2 | could do because we only had three hours. I'mreally
concer ned

3 about this particular statenent.

4 MR O SHEA: Well, | --

5 JUDGE BQUTET: | nean, our decision was based on what we

6 considered to be a fair assessnent of what had transpired.
And

7 di scussions that were to take place should have taken place a

8 long tine ago with all the other parties and with the

9 Prosecution, to say and to informthe Court properly what
coul d

10 be agreed to or not. You're not newto the case. You know
your

11 case. There are certain facts, |'msure, that you can agree
to.

12 But when you do that three hours before the deadline, |

13 understand that you're in a rush. But why you found yourself

14 with this three hours' deadline is really ny concern

15 [ RUF20MARO7MD_C]

16 MR O SHEA: Yes. | apologise. Wen | refer to three

17 hours, | didn't nean to say that we only had a wi ndow of

18 opportunity to discuss matters during those three hours.
was

19 referring to the filing procedures and so forth. | didn't

nmean
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to suggest that we have had no tine to have discussions wth
anybody, so | apologise if that is howit canme across.
JUDGE BQUTET: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, let ne, on this particular --

i ssue of the nunber of Defence wi tnesses and the length of the

Def ence case, which clearly is an issue of grave concern to

Bench -- let ne nerely restate, as tersely as | can, sone of

interjections on the part of the Bench with respect to earlier

expl anations on the part and also representations on the part

the first and second accused.
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I didn't intend you to take the brunt of it but this

applies collectively to all of you: That after we have

the various materials filed by the Defence we would like to go

record as expressing grave concern over the total nunber of

w t nesses that the Defence intend to call. I think it would

be an exaggeration to describe the total nunber as

When we | ook at the total for the first accused it's

t he second accused 96; and then the third accused 66. It

us a grand total of 337 core witnesses. And when you nmeke a
comparison with the Prosecution's w tnesses, unless our
statistics are wong, it's four tinmes the nunber of w tnesses
called by the Prosecution

So, what concl usions do we draw?

Wel |, before we draw any concl usions, we would like to

that the Chanber reiterates its authority in accordance with

Rule 73ter(D). That where there is an excess nunber of

the Chanber may reduce the nunber of wi tnesses that are to be
called. | quoted the relevant subsection this norning.

Al so we woul d probably like to draw counsel's attention
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a decision of the ICTY Appeals Chanber in the Oic case where
that Chanber stated, and | quote:

"The Appeal s Chanber has | ong recogni sed that the

of equality of arms between the Prosecutor and the accused, in

crimnal trial, goes to the heart of the fair trial guarantee

At a minimum equality of arnms obligates a judicial body

ensure that neither party is put at a di sadvantage when
presenting its case, certainly in terns of procedural equity.
This is not to say, however, that an accused is necessarily

entitled to precisely the same anount of tine or the sane
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f 1 of witnesses as the Prosecution.” Enphasis, the same anount
0
2 time or the same nunber of w tnesses as the Prosecution
3 "The Prosecution has the burden of telling an entire
story,
4 of putting together a coherent narrative, and proving every
5 necessary el ement of the crines charged beyond a reasonabl e
6 doubt .
7 Def ence strategy, by contrast, often focuses on poking
8 specifically targeted holes in the Prosecution's case, an
9 endeavour which may require less tine and fewer wtnesses.
10 This is sufficient reason to explain why a principle of
11 basi ¢ proportionality, rather than a strict principle of
12 mat hemati cal equality, generally governs the relationship
bet ween
13 the time and witnesses allocated to the two sides.”
14 We can do no better but adopt the |anguage of the
Appeal s
_ 15 Chanber as to how we feel about a total nunmber of 337
W t nesses.
16 But we take to heart the assurances given by the Defence that
17 there is likely to be sone deescalation in the nunber of
18 Wi t nesses.
19 Let us now nove on to the question of the evidentiary
20 chart. Again, we conclude that generally there is an excess

21 nunber of witnesses and, in addition, to the tinme allocated to
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Def ence in proportion to the Prosecution's case. W don't

to go into any detailed further conparative analysis but if we

|l ook at it froma count-by-count basis, the figures really

story in terns of the tinme that woul d be exhaust ed.

Perhaps | should nmention, for again whatever statistica
val ue this may have for both sides, that when we cal cul ate, or
work out the calculation, we see that Defence for Sesay has

indicated a total of about 800 hours of exam nation-in-chief
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its first -- it's core witnesses excluding the Rul e 92bis

W t nesses, whereas Defence for the second accused has

about 245 hours. For Gbao, the indication is 190 hours.

together, therefore, these figures represent a total of about

1,235 estimated hours of Court time only for the exam nation

in chief, of all the Defence witnesses currently listed as

Wi t nesses.
So you can see that, really, it's a great consunption of
time and may well keep us here for, if we don't do sone

reduction, significant reduction, as Justice Boutet said, we

probably hoping to double the time we are going to spend on

rest of this case alnpst to five years, and certainly none of

has the tinme and resources for that kind of exertion of our
judicial and | egal energies.

As far as 92bis witnesses are concerned, we note that

Defence for the first accused intend to call 50 of its core
Wi t nesses pursuant to Rule 92bis. |Is that correct, counsel?
M5 ASHRAPH. That's correct, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And the Defence for the second accused
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terns of three 92bis wi tnesses?

MR NI COL-WLSON: That is correct, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And Professor O Shea, there is no
i ndi cation of any, at this stage?

MR O SHEA: | thought there was an indication of one
wi t ness, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: One witness. Al right. Yes.

MR O SHEA: Yes.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. That's helpful. Well

we need to urge you to see whether the 92, Rule 92bis
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is not a nore expeditious device that would help you to reduce
the core witness list.

Character witnesses, none of the Defence teans has
specifically indicated in their respective materials which of

their witnesses will testify specifically about the character

the accused. During the status conference of 27 Cctober |ast
year, the Defence for Sesay estinated a total of 40 character
W t nesses, ten of which would be viva voce witnesses while the

Def ence of Kallon estimated a total of about ten to 15

wi tnesses. There was no estinmate given on behalf of the third
accused; is that correct?

MR O SHEA: That's correct, Your Honour. | don't think

the nmonent we have a witness that only deals with character

there are a nunmber of witnesses who deal with character while
dealing with core issues.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, that is -- of course. Wat about
you, M Nicol-Wlson? Ten to 15; is that correct?

MR Nl COL- W LSON: Your Honours, at the noment we have

in our core witness list. W have about five in the backup.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | see. Yes, okay. And counsel for
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first accused?
M5 ASHRAPH. Yes, Your Honour. | don't think we quite
designate -- call it character witnesses in the filing.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.

M5 ASHRAPH:  So ny mind hasn't quite turned to it.

are a nunmber of witnesses in ny understanding in the filing

could be properly characterised as character witnesses.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, there is this hybrid al so of

wi t nesses who may be testifying to certain factual matters and
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al so to character.
M5 ASHRAPH: Indeed. And there are certainly many of

those. Wlat | will say is, obviously, if they are pure

wi tnesses, we will be seeking to discover whether we can put
those in through Rul e 92bis and have discussion with the
Prosecution about whether there is a requirenent to

Cross- exam ne.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But if it comes to it, that you are

to nake this clear distinction between a character w tness and

witness that testifies to certain factual matters, and you

character witness in one conpartnent, wouldn't it be

that you only call one or two character wi tnesses? Wy would

be necessary to call ten character w tnesses for one accused
person? What woul d be the advantage of doing that?
M5 ASHRAPH. Well, there wouldn't, Your Honour. | mean,

what we are saying, essentially, nost of the wi tnesses that

character wi tnesses are al so witnesses giving sone nmeasure of
factual evidence as well.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.
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M5 ASHRAPH. |f there are pure character witnesses, it

be the best way through about that --
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: |Is to reduce them yes.
M5 ASHRAPH: Is to reduce them
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Quite right.

M5 ASHRAPH. But because it wasn't required by no order

mnd isn't turned towards the nunmber within the core and

whi ch are purely character and which are --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. At least the Court would --

woul d be no advantage if it's just a purely character w tness
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havi ng ten w tnesses com ng and saying, cone to say "He is a

man, he is a good man"; why would we want that kind of

M5 ASHRAPH. Well, quite, Your Honour. As | said, ny

hasn't turned to whether the percentage of pure character -- |

don't even know if, in fact, we do have pure character

If we did it would probably best be disposed of with Rule

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ri ght.

M5 ASHRAPH. At the nmonment we have a m x of character

facts, to be sure.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. Opening statenents by first

third accused. Yes.

MR O SHEA: May | just raise an issue which is related

what we have just been tal ki ng about?

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very wel | .

MR O SHEA: At the nonent, on our witness list, we don't
have such witnesses but it is envisaged --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: You nean character w tnesses?

MR O SHEA: No, Your Honour. | amtalking about another

category of w tnesses now which | wish to put to the Bench
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ckay. All right. Yes. Very well

MR O SHEA: Which is a witness which deals purely with

i ssue which is purely relevant to mtigation of sentence.

the reason | raise this issue is because ny understandi ng of

rules at the monent is that when we give our closing

we are expected to give subnissions on sentence as well; is

not the case?

JUDGE BOUTET: No, no.

our statute. You are mixing this Court with the ICTY

That is not our rules.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: | CTY.
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JUDGE BOUTET: W are different.

MR O SHEA: Yes, | amsorry.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: There nmay well have been a proposal at
some plenary to that effect which was not accepted.

MR O SHEA: So | amnot sure in the minds of the judges

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: The | ex ferendum

MR O SHEA: -- whether witnesses which are relevant to
mtigation of sentence should be called at this stage of the
pr oceedi ngs.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Forthright, no. W are in what we

JUDGE I TOE: How can we start talking of litigation when

the man is still presunmed to be innocent; we don't want to get
that far.
MR O SHEA: Well, | agree.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Let ne add that the process we follow
here is a bifurcated process. The trial stage, or the trial

phase, and then the other phase. And we intend to keep things

the bifurcated manner. W don't want to m x apples and

or even appl es and oranges.

MR O SHEA: | amvery grateful for that indication
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as Your Honours know, things have gone a bit differently in

tribunal s.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, yes, and that is difficult.

Sonetinmes, and | use this in the context of an oxynorm

infection of the jurisprudence of all the tribunals.
Opening statements by first and third accused. At the

status conference held on 27 Cctober |ast year, Defence for

first accused indicated that they would be maki ng an openi ng
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statenment pursuant to Rule 84 of the Rules at the commencenent

their case. You confirmthat, counsel?
M5 ASHRAPH: | do, Your Honour
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. At the said conference the

Chanmber al so indicated the Defence for the second accused

made an opening statenment at the comencenent of the trial

Accordingly, the Chanbers rules that the Defence for the

accused has exercised the right to make an openi ng statenent
pursuant to Rule 84. That is correct, M N col-WIson?
MR NI COL- WLSON: That's correct, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And with reference to the third

the Chanber is cognisant that at the comencenent of the trial
the third accused hinself attenpted to nake a statenent of a

political nature and was precluded fromdoing so. At the

conference on 27 Cctober |ast year the Chanber indicated that

reserved at that stage its decision on whether to allow the

Defence for the third accused to make an openi ng statenent.

response to that, M O Shea?

MR O SHEA: Well, we do intend to nake an opening
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and it will be our submission that the commrents nade by M

didn't constitute an opening statenent
with the view of the Chanber

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: M Harri son,

t hat ?

MR O SHEA: Sorry,

subm ssion on that now?

itsel f.

Your Honour, was |

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, | wanted you

state of the records in terns of --

MR O SHEA:

Yes.
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1 submi ssions on any | egal question arising that wouldn't be
t aken

2 now?
. 3 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: No, not at this point, yes. Perhaps
It

4 may but let ne hear M Harrison

5 MR HARRI SON:  Yes. The Prosecution's recollection of

6 events is very sinilar to that stated by the Court. At the
| ast

7 status conference | recall M Justice Itoe naking some
conment s

8 as well. So the Prosecution doesn't take any strong position
one

9 way or the other on this matter.
_ 10 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. Right. Well, fromthe record,
It

11 appears that the statenents nade by the third accused do not

12 constitute an opening statenent proper. It would be the

13 di sposition of the Bench to allow him-- it would be the

14 di sposition of the Bench to allow counsel for the third
accused

15 to nake an openi ng statenent.

16 JUDGE | TCE: |If he so wi shes.

17 MR O SHEA: | amgrateful, Your Honour.

18 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Procedure for the presentation of the

19 evi dence. The Defence case will start with the opening

20 statenents by the Defence for the first accused, foll owed by
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Defence for the third accused. After the concl usion of the

openi ng statenments the Defence for the first accused will

to call the Defence w tnesses, followed by the Defence for

and third accused, respectively.

In terms of nodalities of witnesses exam nation, with
specific reference to the testinony of each Defence w tness at
the trial, the Chanber w shes to enphasi se that the proposed

order of exam nation would be for the Defence for first

to exanine its witnesses first, followed by cross-exam nation
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Def ence for the second accused, and then Defence for the third
accused, and then by the Prosecution

According to this Chanber's jurisprudence and practice

the CDF case, the scope of cross-exam nation should noninally,
and we say nominally or generally, be limted to issues raised

during exam nation-in-chief and the Defence for the first

may re-exan ne the witness on new i ssues raised during

cross-examnation. | don't think -- this is our practice and

don't think there is any -- in case any of you want to make

conment on this?
MR O SHEA: Your Honour, | do have a comment.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Yes.
MR O SHEA: | amnot sure how fixed Your Honours are in

terns of that practice, but | would subnmit that as third

we have good reason for naking the request that | am about to
make.

Your Honours woul d prefer that the opening statenment of

third accused be nmade i Mmedi ately after the opening statenent

the first accused. The concern that | have with that
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procedure is that whatever | say on that day nmay be, to sone
extent, lost in the wind if several nmonths expire before the

w tnesses for M Ghao cone into the witness box. | would |ike

express a preference, if the Chanber feels it has the ability

grant such | eave, for our opening statenent to be nade at the
begi nning of the Gbao case as opposed to the begi nning of the
Def ence as a whol e.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: There are two possible options here:
Either to reject that request outright or to ask you, when the

time cones, to make a proper application for the consideration
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the Bench whether within the stipulated rules we can exercise

discretion to vary the order that we have enunciated. So

are two options.

MR O SHEA: May | respectfully --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Having articulated the two options we
will, in fact, not adopt the first option.

MR O SHEA: Your Honour, | amvery grateful. | was

to gently suggest to the Chanber that there might be a third
option in that the difficulty with ne maki ng an application on

the day is that | will then have to prepare an opening

not knowi ng whether I amgoing to give it or not.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: But you have the resources.

MR O SHEA: Yes, but | would like to ask that | be in a
position to nake the application, even if it is in witing, to
nake the application earlier, rather than on the day itself.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: That is fine. That is fine. At an
appropriate tine. GCkay. Right. M N col-WIson?

MR NI COL-WLSON:. Yes, we would want to have gui dance as

the procedure the Chanber is dealing with the conmon witness.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: W have already indicated the conmon

wi tnesses -- we have already indicated that. My brother
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expl ai ned that we have a CDF precedent on that.

JUDGE BOUTET: M Nicol-WIson, what is your question
exactly?

MR NI COL- W LSON:  Your Honour stated the procedure of

dealing with the witnesses. |In the circunstance, he said that

wants the first accused, call the witness, that wtness wll

exam ned, will be cross-exam ned by the second and third and

t he Prosecution.
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JUDGE BOUTET: Yes. Well, this is what Justice Thonpson
just said for standard witnesses.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Standard, yes.

MR NI COL-WLSON: Well, now, | want to know the

for conmon wi t nesses.

JUDGE BOUTET: It's just as | explained to you before.

it's a commbn witness you are not cross-exam ning because this

is, in theory here, your witness, to the sane extent that this

a witness for the first accused. Therefore, when you put a
question to that witness, it's your witness, and you are in
exam nation-in-chief in respect to that wtness.

MR NI COL-WLSON: | am grateful.

JUDGE BOUTET: You understand what | am saying there,
M N col -W| son?

MR NI COL- WLSON: Yes, Your Honour.

JUDGE BOUTET: Okay.

JUDGE ITCE: And it's only after your exam nation-in-

I nmean, if the three of you are exanmning a commbn wi tness for

the three Defence teans, it's only after the exani nation-in-

of each counsel on the Defence teans that the Prosecution wll
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have to step in to cross-exanm ne the witness and then, of

each and every one of you will have a right to re-examne if

becones necessary in the circunstances.
MR NI COL-WLSON: | amgrateful, Your Honour.

PRESI DING JUDGE: In ternms of the order of call of

witnesses, as a similar practice during the course of the
Prosecution case, for the purpose of trial nmanagenent, the

Chanber will require each Defence teamto provide an

of the order of call of their witnesses. Considering that the
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Def ence case will be heard on a continuous basis, rather than

a basis of four to six week trial sessions as occurred in the
Prosecution's case, the Chanber is now of the view that the

Def ence shoul d provide an indication of the order of call of

wi tnesses for at |east every 15/20 witnesses, and 15 days

to their expected testinmony at trial.

In other words, we are hoping that you should indicate

your order for the call of your w tnesses, 15 or 20 witnesses,
between 15 and 20, | would say, and 15 days prior to their
expected testinony at the trial. Wat is your response,

Ms Ashraph? That doesn't put any undue burden on the Defence.

You have so many witnesses. To ask you to indicate about 15

20 doesn't seemto be a burden.
M5 ASHRAPH. | was going to say, Your Honour, the Sesay
teamwi Il happily conply with that order.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. Counsel for the second accused?
MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honour, that is accepted.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And the counsel for the third accused?
MR O SHEA: Yes, that is a fair proposal, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. And also you will have to



21 the | anguage in which your witnesses will be testifying in

t hat
22 order. Thank you.
23 Well, the last itemon the agenda is "Any other matter".
24 Specifically, we need to just recall the position about
speci al
25 defences and alibi. At the status conference held on 27
Cct ober
26 | ast year the Defence for the first accused indicated that
t hey
27 will not be calling or, rather, relying on any special defence
or
28 even on alibi pursuant to Rule 67(A) of the Rules of Procedure

29 and Evidence. Do you confirmthat, Ms Ashraph?
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M5 ASHRAPH. | confirmthat position, yes, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: At the sane status conference the

for the second accused indicated that they were reserving the

right to indicate whether they will rely on a special defence

alibi. Can you nowtell us, M Nicol-WIson?

MR NI COL- WLSON:  Your Honours, | can now

say that we shall not be relying on any special defences or
alibis.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. And M Brown, counsel for
M Brown, would you indicate, perhaps, Professor O Shea?

MR O SHEA: M Brown or M Gbhao?

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Counsel for M Ghao.

JUDGE | TCE: Not Brown versus the Board of Educati on.

MR O SHEA: Yes. No, we haven't identified any special
defences that we are relying on.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: And not alibi, either?

MR O SHEA: No.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: So we have firmand definitive

on that.
Protective nmeasures for witnesses at the trial. The

Chanber is cognisant that each of the Defence teans has sought
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and obtai ned various protective neasures for their w tnesses.
The neasures ordered are principally aimed at providing such
wi tnesses with general protection during the period preceding
their testinony at the trial.

In addition, the Chanber has also ordered that each
protected Defence witness will testify with the use of a

screening device fromthe public. For reasons of efficient

managenment the Chanber would, at this stage, renmi nd each of
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Def ence teams, and in particular the Defence of the first

accused, which will start its case first, to apply in good

before this Chanber for the issuing of any other particul ar
protective nmeasures for any specific witness testinony at the
trial, if necessary.

Let me also say, in respect of the second accused, that

Chanber received a notice fromthe Defence teaminformng the

Chanmber that six of its witnesses, in the current wtness

all of themresiding outside West Africa, and who have

their willingness to testify, have now indicated that they

to testify at trial in open session; is that correct?
MR NI COL-WLSON: That is correct, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Unfortunately, however, it is not

fromthe notice whether these w tnesses nore generally intend

renounce all protective measures ordered for themby this

or whether they specifically intend to renounce solely the use

the screening device during their testinmony. So, we are not

whet her they were saying: W don't need any protection at al
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whether it's just a g

uestion of not requiring the screening

device during their testinony; are you in a position to advise

us, M N col -WIson?

MR NI COL- W LSON

the screeni ng devi ce.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE

protective nmeasures?

MR NI COL- W LSON

PRESI DI NG JUDGE

Your Honour, it's limted to the use

So they want to preserve the other

Yes, Your Honour.

Vel l, | hope you can nake the

amendnent to the notice because our records -- it will reflect

in the records of this proceeding.
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MR NI COL-WLSON: We will, Your Honour.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. |Is there any --

MR HARRI SON: On that particular point, | think the
deci sion was rendered yesterday with respect to the protective
measures. My recollection of the order is that the Court

determned that no prina facie case was denonstrat ed

protective neasures for persons residing outside of West

So, if these are persons outside of West Africa, which the

seens to say, then according to what | understand to be the
Court's decision there ought not to be any protective neasures
including the use of a pseudonymin the witness list.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: How do you respond to that? | would
think that you have already decided that no such protective
measures apply, then in fact, the situation is nmoot, is it?

MR NI COL- WLSON: Exactly, Your Honour

PRESI DI NG JUDGE:  Mbot.

Ri ght. Subpoenas for Defence w tnesses. |s any Defence

teaminterested in noving the Court for subpoena orders?

accused?

M5 ASHRAPH: Your Honour, at the nonent we are not



21 any orders for subpoenas, and we are hoping that it will not

be
22 necessary. Certainly we have had co-operation with w tnesses
we
23 are approaching, but if we come up against a road bl ock then
24 obviously we will informthe Trial Chanber.
25 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Second accused?
26 MR Nl COL- WLSON:  Your Honour, then we shall make a
r equest
27 if the need arises, but at this stage we don't envi sage maki ng
28 such a request.
29 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you.

SCSL - TRI AL CHAMBER |
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MR O SHEA: | envisage the possibility of us seeking

an order in relation to a category of w tnesses which are not

on our list.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very wel | .

MR O SHEA: But it will be nmore in the formof a request
for an order for a government to co-operate than a subpoena as
such.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. Thank you. The final itemis
"Qutstanding notions". The following notions are currently
pendi ng before the Trial Chamber in this case.

Prosecution application for |leave to appeal, mgjority

deci sion on oral objection taken by counsel for the third

to the adm ssibility of portions of the evidence of wtness
TF1-371, filed by the Prosecution on 21 August 2006
Confidential Sesay Defence notion requesting the lifting of
protective neasures in respect of protected witnesses filed by
the Defence on 19 January 2007. 3. Application for leave to
appeal 2 March 2007 decision, filed by Defence for Sesay on 5
March 2007, and Sesay Defence notion for imedi ate protective
nmeasures for witnesses filed by the Defence on 5 March 2007

Very well. |Is there any conment on that, on the



22 Any? Are there any subm ssions by the parties at this point

on
23 any issues relating to the case? Yes, M Harrison
24 MR HARRI SON: Yes. The Prosecution's primary concern is
25 fulfilling the disclosure requirenent. The Prosecution's
26 understanding is that the trial will resume on 2 May and
per haps
27 even a witness will be taken on that day. The 42 days for
28 di sclosure, | think, would be tonmorrow, and the Prosecution is
29 asking the Court if it can give any further direction to the
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parties with respect to disclosing, first of all, a sunmary of
the accused, and secondly, of those witnesses who will be
followi ng shortly after the accused, so that there will be

adequate tine to prepare, and so that there would be no reason

need to seek any adjournnents throughout the proceedings.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Thank you. Counsel for the first
accused, you want to respond to that?

M5 ASHRAPH: Your Honour, if the first witness is M

then we will endeavour obviously to get a sutmmary to the
Prosecuti on.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: When?

M5 ASHRAPH. Well, if the first day is tonorrow then |
suppose we will be doing it by tomorrow. Cbviously if that is
the Court order then we will do it. | wasn't aware it --

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: O herwi se we are disposed to making an
order this afternoon.

M5 ASHRAPH: We will do it by tomorrow. We will do it

tomorrow. Cbhviously M Sesay would take sone tinme, | inagine,
|l eaving us to comply with the 42-day rule in respect of later
W t nesses.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Very well. M Harrison?

MR HARRI SON:  Yes, | understand that is certainly in
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: (O herwise, we will be disposed to nake

order this afternoon.
MR HARRI SON:  |Is it possible --
JUDGE | TOE: But the other witnesses, | think the other

aspect of the question is not answered because it's M Sesay

the other w tnesses as well.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: O course; he is the | onger wtness.

MR HARRI SON: The Defence al ways has sone great -- a

body of know edge which the Prosecution isn't privy to. They

much nore able to estinmate how nmuch tinme the direct

of M Sesay is going to take. If it took a day |I think we

be in serious problem Wth direct examnation in their own

judgenent, it's wthout doubt two weeks, then the problemis

as severe
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes.

MR HARRI SON: But | wanted to reiterate sonething just

that the Prosecution is in no doubt what the Prosecution is
trying to do and so the Defence is clear

The Prosecution is going to be asking questions only on
those areas where significant matters are in issue. And the

Prosecution is going to be striving to get through upwards of

to 25 witnesses a week.

In order to conply with the disclosure there is going to
have to be a ot of attention directed to actually getting the
i nformati on out and provided to all the parties in advance of

when the witness is going to testify.
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, Ms Ashraph.

M5 ASHRAPH:  Your Honour, the estimte of 20 to 25
wi t nesses per week seens to be based on the experience of the
AFRC and the CDF trial, and it's ny position that's not

necessarily going to be the state in relation to the RUF

Certainly I have not got any real know edge of the CDF tri al

havi ng seen sone of the transcripts in the AFRC trial, | can

it's arather different -- the nature of evidence is different

and it's a conpletely different basis on which the trial is
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put, not to nention, of course, that the RUF has a broader
indictment, both in terns of geographic |ocations and tenpora
jurisdiction. 20 to 25 witnesses a week | think would be
optimstic.

What | will say is this: |Is that we will conply with

42-day rule. W will clearly speak to the Prosecution, also

the ot her counsel for the other co-accused, as to length of --

perhaps after having seen the sumaries -- the possible length

cross-exam nation and try and ensure that there are no gaps in

our witness list and have as many w tnesses avail able as we

take at any one time. Cearly, we are only going to choose

best witnesses. |It's quality not quantity which is governing

deci si on-naki ng and al so the witnesses in M Sesay's best

interests and to have an expeditious trial, so we will be

with as many witnesses as we can take. And we woul d hope to

as many w tnesses as possible in a week, but | think 20 to 25

overly optimstic.

JUDGE ITOE: And | think, even after you have provided a



19 definitive list of your witnesses, we do expect that you wll,

in

20 one day, envisage taking one or two wtnesses and have a
backup

21 list of witnesses waiting in the waiting, just in case we go

22 faster than we antici pat ed.
_ 23 M5 ASHRAPH: | ndeed. What we don't want is dead court
time

24 if you -- in view of succession. W are aimng to avoid that
at

25 all costs because it obviously does no one in this room any
good.

26 MR HARRI SON:  The only other thing the Prosecution is
A 27 asking of the Court is to contenpl ate whether an order should
e
. 28 put in place setting a date certain for when the first accused
is

29 going to state if he is going to testify.
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1 PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Ms Ashraph?

2 M5 ASHRAPH.  Your Honour, if you give us that date we
will

3 comply with it. Wat | will say is this is that: It is
hi ghl y

4 that M Sesay will testify. | would work on the assunption
t hat

5 he is going to testify. Cbviously by tonmorrow we are going to

6 have to give a summary of our first witness. |Is that -- is
t he

7 summary --

8 JUDGE I TCE: Do we then understand that as soon as you
gi ve

9 a sunmary of that evidence it's an indication that he wll

10 testify?

11 M5 ASHRAPH. Yes, Your Honour. | nean, obviously an

12 accused has the right to change his mnd. That is the
situation;

13 he can change his mnd. There is always the possibility, but
it

14 is slight.

15 JUDGE | TOE: Consi der ed.

16 M5 ASHRAPH. But it is slight. It is slight at this
st age.

17 I don't knowif | can put it any nore strongly than that.

18 JUDGE BOUTET: No, but, based on that, should the

accused
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change his mind, it means that you shoul d provide the

with informati on about nore than that one w tness because if

changes his nmind then they need to have 42 days start as from
tomorrow for the other w tnesses.

M5 ASHRAPH. | understand that. My | say that if we

provide a summary of M Sesay's evidence then the Court and

parties here should take it that he will be testifying wthout

doubt .

JUDGE BOQUTET: True. But | would |ike to be reassured

you will disclose in the shortest tinme possible as nuch as you

can informati on about the other witnesses as well. So that we
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need not to issue an order to say it is 42 days, now, you nust
i ssue anot her one.

M5 ASHRAPH. Well, Your Honour, | will obviously discuss

within the team What | will say is this: W think M Sesay

highly likely to testify. A sunmmary will be given tonorrow,

accordance with the rule. He is likely to take sone tine

evidence, and the witnesses following himw Il conply with the
42-day rule. Depending on discussions that we have today, if

there seens to be any neasure, any real calculable risk that

will not testify, then we will seek to disclose further

sunmari es, obviously all w tness nunbers, to enable all the
parties to prepare.

JUDGE BQUTET: Thank you.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Any further subm ssions on any issues?
M O Shea?

MR O SHEA: | have a separate issue | would like to

Your Honour.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Pl ease.
MR OSHEA: And it relates to the trial schedul e.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes.



Si X

to

of

tria

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

MR O SHEA: | amgoing to be asking the Bench for an
i ndi cati on about how the trial is going to operate, and the
reason is this:

During the Prosecution case the budget which we operated
on, as Defence, was prem sed on the circunstances. The

circunstances were that we were sitting for periods of about

weeks at a tine and then we woul d be away for periods of four

six weeks at a tine. The reason for that | think was because

the CDF trial. Those circunstances have changed. The CDF
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is no longer running, so the question arises whether this RUF
trial is going to be running continuously or with breaks as it
was during the Prosecution case

It's a fundanmental question for us and it's a question

which if we could have an indication fromthe Bench now, that
will give me the appropriate excuse to nmake an application for
special considerations to the Defence Ofice, and subsequently

the Registrar, if need be, because our budget works on the

at the nonent, that the expenses for keeping counsel here in
Sierra Leone cone out of that budget. So we would either need
nmore noney, or we would need a situation where the Registry no

| onger insisted upon the DLA, et cetera, com ng out of our

in order to be able to sustain our position here during the
trial.

So an indication fromthe Bench that we are operating
continuously would give us the appropriate excuse to nmake the
appropriate application. | don't knowif the Bench is in a
position to give an indication as to that at this stage.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: M O Shea, we -- is this on this very
i ssue?

M5 KAH JALLOWN Yes, Your Honour. I wish to -- | am
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speaki ng on behal f of the Office for the Principal Defender.

just want to inform Your Lordships that the issue of

of the DLAfromlegal fees is before an arbiter as we speak.
It's a mtter of arbitration. So | thought you would like to
know before you nade any comments on the issue.

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Right. Thank you.

MR O SHEA: Can | just clarify that that arbitration has

nothing to do with the Ghao Defence. It is, as | understand,
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it's specifically inrelation to an application made by M

PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Well, in any event, we will, regarding
your request for sonme indication as to the sitting, whether we

are going to sit continuously or not the Bench will, in fact,

i ssuing a consequential directive on that as soon as possi bl e.
MR O SHEA: Thank you very nuch, Your Honour
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes, M Ashraph.

M5 ASHRAPH:  Yes, Your Honour. One final thing, sinply

the record, it again has to do with funding of the Defence.

Sesay team has lost two very capable | egal assistants in the

two or three nonths as a result of not being to able to offer

competitive salary commensurate with their experience. At the

moment our | egal assistants are paid an anount we consider to

derisory considering their experience and certainly relative

other simlarly qualified professionals of the Court. | only
seek this for the record. |It's obviously not an issue for
Honours at this nonent. | nerely state it for the record

because, obviously, a continual |oss of capable |ega
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will inpact on our ability to be ready for the trial, so

note it for the record here today.
PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Yes. This Court has been so | unbered
sometines with a ot of fiscal issues which properly belong to

adm nistration, but we do understand our role that if there

fiscal problens that inpact adversely upon the fairness and

expedtiousness of the trial we probably will have to

But we hope you can have this resolved el sewhere. And unl ess

it's necessary to conme to us for sone further directives we

advi se that you exhaust all possible administrative remedies.

M5 ASHRAPH. | am grateful, Your Honour
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PRESI DI NG JUDGE: Any further subm ssions? If not I

now concl ude this proceeding and thank you very nuch for your
time and attention. That is the end of the proceeding.

[ Wher eupon the pre-defence conference

at 1.20 p.m, to be reconvened on Wdnesday,

the 2nd day of May 2007, at 9.30 a.m]
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